
 

 

 

For enquiries regarding this agenda; 

Contact: 01737 276182 

Email: democratic@reigate-banstead.gov.uk  

Published 29 June 2021 

 

Agenda 

Planning Committee 

Wednesday, 7 July 2021 at 7.30 pm 

Remote meeting via video link 

 

Meetings will take place in accordance with 

Government guidance. Members of the Committee 

will assemble at the Town Hall, Reigate. 

 

Members of the public may observe the proceedings 

live on the Council’s website. 

For information about speaking at meetings of the 

Planning Committee, visit our website.  

 Members: 

 S. Parnall (Chairman)  

 M. S. Blacker 

G. Adamson 

J. Baker 

Z. Cooper 

R. Harper 

A. King 

F. Kelly 

J. P. King 

S. A. Kulka 

S. McKenna 

R. Michalowski 

R. Ritter 

C. Stevens 

S. T. Walsh 

 Substitutes: 

 Conservatives: R. Absalom, A. C. J. Horwood, J. Hudson, M. Tary and 
R. S. Turner 

 Residents Group: R. J. Feeney, P. Harp, N. D. Harrison and C. T. H. Whinney 

 Green Party: J. Booton, P. Chandler, J. C. S. Essex, S. Sinden and D. Torra 

 Liberal Democrats M. Elbourne 

Mari Roberts-Wood 
Interim Head of Paid Service 

mailto:democratic@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
https://reigate-banstead.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/100/speaking_at_planning_meetings


 
 

1.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 6) 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the previous 
meeting. 

 

2.   Apologies for absence  

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

3.   Declarations of interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest.  

4.   Addendum to the agenda (To Be Tabled) 

 To note the addendum tabled at the meeting which provides an 
update on the agenda of planning applications before the 
Committee. 
 
PLANNING APPLICATIONS: 
 

NOTES:  

1. The order in which the applications will be considered at 
the meeting may be subject to change. 

2. Plans are reproduced in the agenda for reference 
purposes only and are not reproduced to scale.  
Accordingly dimensions should not be taken from these 
plans and the originals should be viewed for detailed 
information. Most drawings in the agenda have been 
scanned, and reproduced smaller than the original, thus 
affecting image quality. 

 
To consider the following applications: 

 

5.   21/00205/OUT - 46- 48 Victoria Road, Horley (Pages 7 - 40) 

 Additional floors to accommodate 42 residential dwellings. As 
amended on 28/04/2021 and on 26/05/2021. 

 

6.   21/00413/F - 29 Woodlands Road, Redhill (Pages 41 - 70) 

 Construction of two detached four bedroom houses including 
access road and parking/ landscaping. As amended on 
17/06/2021. 

 

7.   21/00501/F - Middleton House, 43-49 High Street, Horley (Pages 71 - 104) 

 Erection of a three storey rear extension to provide ten flats 
(Revision of 18/01576/F to provide for an additional unit). As 
amended on 06/05/2021, 26/05/2021. and on 28/05/2021. 

 



8.   a) 21/00373/HHOLD and b) 21/00374/LBC - 29 West Street, 
Reigate 

(Pages 105 - 134) 

 Demolition of existing modern wooden conservatory at the rear of 
the property and replacement with part-single and part-two storey 
extensions. 

 

9.   Any other urgent business  

 To consider any item(s) which, in the opinion of the Chairman, 
should be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Our meetings 
As we would all appreciate, our meetings will be conducted in a 
spirit of mutual respect and trust, working together for the 
benefit of our Community and the Council, and in accordance 
with our Member Code of Conduct. Courtesy will be shown to 
all those taking part. 
 

 
 

Streaming of meetings 
Meetings are broadcast live on the internet and are available to 
view online for six months. A recording is retained for six years 
after the meeting. In attending any meeting, you are recognising 
that you may be filmed and consent to the live stream being 
broadcast online, and available for others to view.  
 

 
 

 

Accessibility  
The Council’s agenda and minutes are provided in English. 
However, the Council also embraces its duty to anticipate the 
need to provide documents in different formats, such as audio, 
large print or in other languages. The Council will provide such 
formats where a need is identified prior to publication or on 
request.  
 

 

Notice is given of the intention to hold any part of this meeting 
in private for consideration of any reports containing “exempt” 
information, which will be marked accordingly.  



Planning Committee  
9 June 2021 Minutes 

 
 

BOROUGH OF REIGATE AND BANSTEAD 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held at the New Council Chamber - Town 
Hall, Reigate on 9 June 2021 at 7.30 pm. 
 
Present: Councillors G. Adamson, J. Baker, M. S. Blacker, Z. Cooper, R. Harper, A. King, 
F. Kelly, J. P. King, S. A. Kulka, R. Michalowski, S. Parnall, R. Ritter, C. Stevens, 
S. T. Walsh and P. Chandler (Substitute). 
 
Also present: Councillor Harrison. 
 

1.   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

RESOLVED that Councillor Parnall; having been proposed by Councillor Walsh, 
and seconded by Councillor J King, be elected as Chairman of the Planning 
Committee for the 2021-22 municipal year. 
 

2.   ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 

RESOLVED that Councillor Blacker; having been proposed by Councillor J King, 
and seconded by Councillor Stevens, be elected as Vice-Chairman of the Planning 
Committee for the 2021-22 municipal year. 
 

3.   MINUTES 

It was stated that the time noting the conclusion of the meeting should read 
10.30pm, with this amendment it was RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting 
held on 19 May 2021 be approved as a correct record. 
 

4.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence had been received from Councillor McKenna, Councillor 
Chandler attended as his substitute. 
 
Councillor Blacker attended the meeting virtually and was therefore unable to vote. 
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

6.   ADDENDUM TO THE AGENDA 

RESOLVED that the addendum be noted. 
 

7.   CHAVE CROFT, BROAD WALK, EPSOM DOWNS, SURREY, KT18 5TT 

The Committee considered an application at Chave Croft, Broad Walk, Epsom 
Downs for the Demolition of existing building and redevelopment to provide a total 
of 23 homes with associated amenity space, landscaping, car and cycle parking. As 
amended on 31/03/2021, 12/04/2021 and on 12/05/2021. 
 
Councillor Harrison, a visiting member, spoke in support of the application. A brief 
history of the site was given, and it was explained that latterly the site was used for 
temporary housing and there had been some issues of anti-social behaviour. The 

5

Agenda Item 1



Planning Committee  
9 June 2021 Minutes 

 

design was complex due to changing land levels, however following a site visit it 
was felt that this was a good design and overlooking would not be an issue. 
Following public consultation, there had been some amendments to the design. 
Condition 11 was referred to in respect of parking and the Housing Association had 
now met the Council’s parking standard. A solution had also been achieved 
regarding access for the refuse vehicle. The proposal provided much needed social 
housing.  
 
RESOLVED that subject to completion of a Section 106 legal agreement, planning 
permission be GRANTED with conditions, as per the recommendation and 
addendum, and regarding Condition 11, the officer is asked to consult with Ward 
Members on details submitted and the additional informative to state: 
 
The applicant is requested to consider further solutions to help address the on-
street parking issues affecting the locality. 
 

8.   REAR OF 74 TO 82 BRIGHTON ROAD, HORLEY, SURREY 

The Committee considered an application at Rear of 74 to 82 Brighton Road, Horley 
for the erection of two detached 2 bedroom chalet bungalows and associated 
landscaped parking area with arched features over the existing vehicle and 
pedestrian access entrances. 
 
RESOLVED that planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions as per 
the recommendation and additional informative to state: 
 
Given that the requisite 45-metre distance for fire tender access is only just met, the 
applicant should liaise carefully with Surrey Fire and Rescue to ensure satisfactory 
arrangements regarding this. 
 

9.   ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS 

There was none. 
 

 
 

The Meeting closed at 8.47 pm 
 

6

Agenda Item 1



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 7th July 2020 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF PLACES & PLANNING 

AUTHOR: James Amos 

TELEPHONE: 01737 276188 

EMAIL: james.amos@reigate-banstead.gov.uk 

AGENDA ITEM: 5 WARD: Horley Central and South 

 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00205/OUT VALID: 01/04/2021 
APPLICANT: Collingwood Batchellor AGENT: STAAC Ltd 
LOCATION: COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR, 46 - 48 VICTORIA ROAD 

HORLEY, SURREY 
DESCRIPTION: Additional floors to accommodate 42 residential dwellings. As 

amended on 28/04/2021 and on 26/05/2021. 
All plans in this report have been reproduced, are not to scale, and are for 
illustrative purposes only. The original plans should be viewed/referenced for 
detail. 

 
This application is referred to Committee by the Head of Planning. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This is an outline application, with all matters reserved, for the construction of 4 
additional storeys of accommodation on the existing building at 46-48 Victoria Road 
comprising of 42 flats in a mix of sizes (1, 2 and 3 bedroom units) and including both 
private and affordable housing.  The ground and first floors of the existing building 
are in retail use and would be retained with the four additional storey sitting above.   
 
The re-configured ground floor of the building would include cycle parking and 
refuse storage for the proposed flats.  No car parking is proposed. 
 
Having regard to the scale of development on the north-eastern side of Victoria 
Road the street and the lower element of the Russell Square development opposite, 
it is considered that the proposed development would be out of scale with its 
surroundings and harmful to the character of the area.  Although appearance and 
scale are reserved matters, the submitted plans  indicate how the proposed 
development may be achieved and demonstrate the difficulty in designing 
extensions to meet the quantum of development applied for whilst ensuring against 
harm to the character of the Victorian department store which is one of the most 
attractive buildings in the town and considered to be an undesignated heritage 
asset, and harm to the character of the surrounding area.    
 

7

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

The submitted drawings illustrate that the proposed flats would be of an appropriate 
size and that each units could be provided with adequate natural sunlight and 
daylight and with adequate outdoor amenity space for a town centre location.   
 
The proposed development would be located a sufficient distance away from the 
neighbouring residential properties in Russell Square so that the amenities of 
neighbouring residents would not be adversely impacted in terms of overshadowing 
overlooking or a loss of privacy.    
 
The proposals do not include any parking for residents.  The lack of parking on the 
site would be contrary to DMP Policy TAP1 and the adopted parking standards set 
out in Annex 4 of the DMP.  In such circumstances, Policy TAP1 states that  all 
types of development should include car parking and cycle storage for residential 
and non-residential development in accordance with adopted local standards unless 
satisfactory evidence is provided to demonstrate that non-compliance would not 
result in unacceptable harm. Such evidence could include on-street parking surveys, 
evidence of parking demand, and/ or further information on accessibility. 
Development should not result in unacceptable levels of on-street parking demand 
in existing or new streets.  
 
In this case, the applicants have provided evidence to show that the site benefits 
from good access to public transport facilities, and to a good range of shops and 
services.  The application has been reviewed by the County Highway Authority who 
do not believe that the proposals would lead to unacceptable harm or unacceptable 
levels of demand for on-street parking due to the parking restrictions in the 
surrounding area.  Annex 4 of the DMP also states that a lower amount of parking 
may be appropriate within or adjacent to town centres. That is considered to apply in 
this case. On this basis, no objections are raised with regards to the lack of parking 
on the site. 
 
The application would also provide 13 units of affordable housing which accords 
with the requirements of DMP Policy DES6.  The mix and tenure of the affordable 
housing has been agreed with the Council’s Housing team and is considered 
acceptable.  In the event that planning permission was to be granted, any 
permission would be subject to a legal agreement which would bring forward the 
affordable housing units. In the event of refusal on other grounds, the absence of 
such an agreement ought to constitute a further reason for refusal. 
 
The main starting point for the consideration of this scheme is that the proposal is 
within the urban area and a redevelopment of the site to provide a more effective 
and efficient use of the site and provide a residential development would be 
acceptable in principle. However, the proposed quantum of development is 
considered to exceed what could be achieved on the site without harm to the 
character of the building and surrounding area.    

 
Significant weight is given to the fact that a development of the scale proposed 
could demonstrate a significant contribution towards housing delivery, provide a type 
of housing within demand in the Borough and opportunity for economic growth. The 
applicants cite the scheme being critical to the continued operation of the store. 
Whilst it is absolutely agreed that the store is a great asset to the town, I have not 

8

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

been provided with any evidence to demonstrate that the refusal of permission 
would lead to the closure of the store or that the grant of permission would lead to its 
ongoing retention. 

 
Weighing significantly against the scheme are the harmful impact that it would have  
upon the character and appearance of the area. In this case, with an up to date 
Core Strategy and policy framework, the development is considered contrary to the 
development plan and the adverse impacts are considered to outweigh the benefits 
significantly and demonstrably when assessed against the Policy Framework; 
accordingly, for the reasons set out above it is considered that this application 
should be refused. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
Planning permission is REFUSED for the following reasons:  
 
1 The proposal would, by virtue of the additional height, bulk and mass of the 

proposed additional storeys result in an unacceptable form of development, 
which would appear unduly prominent, out of keeping with and harmful to the 
character and appearance of the host building and of the surrounding area, 
contrary to policies RET1, DES1 and NHE9 Reigate and Banstead 
Development Management Plan 2019 and the provisions of the Council's 
Local Distinctiveness Design Guide SPD. 
 

2 In the absence of a legal agreement under Section 106 to secure 13 units of 
affordable housing, the proposed development would be contrary to Policy 
CS14 o the Core Strategy 2014 (reviewed 2019); Policy DES6 of the 
Development Management Plan 2019 and the provisions of the Council's 
Affordable Housing SPD. 

 

9

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

Consultations: 
 
Highway Authority:  The County Highway Authority has assessed the application on 
safety, capacity and policy grounds and is satisfied that the application would not 
have a material impact on the safety and operation of the adjoining public highway 
with respect of access, net additional traffic generation and parking. The County 
Highway Authority therefore has no highway requirements subject to conditions 
relating to the provision of bicycle parking, refuse storage arrangements, the 
provision of a construction transport management plan and the provision of a travel 
statement to include a travel information pack for future residents.    
 
Surrey CC Sustainable Drainage – Have reviewed the surface water drainage 
strategy for the proposed development and assessed it against the requirements of 
the NPPF, its accompanying PPG and the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for 
sustainable drainage systems.  The following documents submitted as part of the 
above application have been reviewed and should be referred to as part of any 
future submissions or discharge of planning conditions:  
 

• Application Form, SAACT Ltd, December 2020, Revision A, Document 
Reference: 4477439  

• SuDS/Drainage Assessment, Arch Environmental Consultancy, January 
2021, tdA, Document Reference: 4509267  

 
State that they are satisfied that the proposed drainage scheme meets the 
requirements set out in the aforementioned documents and are content with the 
development proposed, subject to the imposition of conditions requiring the 
submission of a detailed drainage scheme and a verification report. 
 
Horley Town Council – No objections. 
 
RBBC Housing Team – state that they are satisfied with the units allocated for 
rented and shared ownership accommodation. 
 
Thames Water – No objections if the developer follows the sequential approach to 
the disposal of surface water.  No objections raised with regards to the disposal of 
waste water.   
 
Surrey Police – Has reviewed the Design and Access Statement for the application 
along with the respective floor plans and notes that Secured by Design is referred to 
and states that “safety measures include one secure point of entry into the 
apartments.  There are no ‘left over’ spaces especially in locations where high levels 
of human activity may be undesirable”.  However, in the plans it is noted that 
stairwell 1 and stairwell 2 as well as the lifts in these locations serve the residential 
areas of the development.  This may afford a higher degree of permeability unless 
certain control measures are in put in place.   It is understood that some form of 
mechanism will be considered in the development, but it is sated that an access 
system should be consider3d as set in Secured by Design 2019 for developments of 
more than 25 units. 
 

10

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

It is also requested that there is security compartmentation of the development 
between floors to avoid any further anti-social behaviour.  It is requested that cycle 
stores and bin storage door sets are to the appropriate standard. Further advice 
should be sought from then Crime Prevention team at Surrey Police.   It is stated 
that the intention of following the basic principles of Secured by Design 
developments in terms of crime prevention through environmental design is a very 
positive aspect.  Request that a  condition be imposed for require Secured by 
Design accreditation for the development.   
 
Representations: 
 
Letters were sent to neighbouring properties on 9th April 2021, a site notice was 
posted 15th April 2021 and advertised in local press on 22nd April 2021.    
 
7 responses have been received raising the following issues: 
 
Issue Response 
Inadequate parking See paragraph 6.23 
No need for the development See paragraph 6.3 
Noise & disturbance See paragraph 6.21 
Inconvenience during construction See paragraph 6.21 
Out of character with surrounding 
area 

See paragraph 6.5 – 6.12 

Increase in traffic and congestion See paragraph 6.23 – 6.24 
Overdevelopment See paragraph 6.5 – 6.12 
Overlooking and loss of privacy See paragraph 6.19 
Overshadowing See paragraph 6.18 
Overbearing relationship See paragraph 6.18 
Drainage/sewage capacity See paragraph 6.32 
Property devaluation  This is not a material planning 

consideration 
No need for development  
 

Each application must be 
assessed on its own merits 

Loss of private view 
 

This is not a material planning 
consideration 

Support - Visual amenity benefits Response 
 
1.0 Site and Character Appraisal 
 
1.1 The site comprises the Collingwood Batchelor department store, which varies 

between two and four storeys in height. The frontage on Victoria Road and 
the return on Consort Way East are of traditional design with a glazed ground 
floor shop front, rendered upper floors, pitched roof and parapet walls. A 
modern glazed element turns the corner from Consort Way onto a slip road 

11

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

that separates the site from Consort Way car park. The rear of the building to 
Consort Way East rises to three storeys and has been re-developed to mimic 
the front elevation. 
 

1.2 The site is located within the Horley town centre primary shopping area and is 
situated on the corner of Consort Way East and Victoria Road. Opposite to 
the south west there is Russell Square a relatively new mixed use 
development including a library at ground floor and flats to the upper floors in 
a part 3/4/5/6 storey building.  Adjacent to the north west is a three storey 
building with a food store (Iceland) on the ground floor. Opposite to the south 
east there are a number of food and drink uses and the entrance to the 
Waitrose car park. To the rear of the site lies the Consort Way surface car 
park. 

 
2.0 Added Value 
 
2.1 Improvements secured at the pre-application stage:  
 
2.2 Improvements have not been sought during the planning application process 

as the proposal is considered unacceptable on a point of principle.   
 
 
3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History 
              
3.1 01/02275/F Erection of second floor extension 

(amendment to applications 98/02680/F 
and 98/11860/F 

Granted  
27 February 2002 

    
3.2 05/01410/F Demolition of part of existing and 

construction of extended retail area 
Granted  

11 August 2005 
    
3.3 06/00239/F Amendment to phase two of 

05/01410/F for alterations and second 
floor extension 

Granted  
7 April 2006 

    
3.4 10/02028/F Extension to existing department store 

to provide additional retail space 
Granted  

January 2011 
    
 
4.0 Proposal and Design Approach 
 
4.1 This is an outline application for the demolition of parts of the existing building 

at second storey level and the erection of 4 additional floors of 
accommodation over the existing retained ground and first floors to provide 
42 new residential flats in a mix of sizes and providing both market and 
affordable housing.  The submitted illustrative plans show a development that 
rises to 6 storeys in total with the upper storeys gradually set back.  The 
second and third storeys would be set back from the lower floors whilst the 
fourth and fifth storeys would be set back further.   
 

12

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

4.2 The ground and first floor retail space would be retained and extended.  
Access to the flats on the upper storeys would be gained via a communal 
entrance off Consort Way East at the rear of the building.  This area would 
also contain refuse storage and cycle storage at ground floor level.  No car 
parking is proposed as part of the proposals. 
 

4.3 The application is made in outline with all matters reserved.  The application 
seeks to establish the principle of the development in the form shown with 
indications of scale, layout and illustrative drawings which show the external 
appearance of a form of development which could take place on the site.  In 
the event that outline permission is granted, further details of the scale, 
external appearance, layout, landscaping and means of access would need 
to be submitted as reserved matters.  

 
4.4 A design and access statement should illustrate the process that has led to 

the development proposal, and justify the proposal in a structured way, by 
demonstrating the steps taken to appraise the context of the proposed 
development.  It expects applicants to follow a four-stage design process 
comprising: 

 Assessment; 
 Involvement; 
 Evaluation; and 
 Design. 
 
4.5 Evidence of the applicant’s design approach is set out below: 
 

 
Assessment The character of the surrounding area is assessed as  

being a town centre location where there is a mix of 
commercial and residential uses.  Ground floor locations 
are generally in retail or commercial use whilst upper 
storeys accommodate both commercial and residential 
uses.   
Site features meriting retention are noted as the ground 
and first floor retail space.. 

Involvement No community consultation took place. 
Evaluation The statement does not include any evidence of other 

development options being considered. 
Design The applicant’s reasons for choosing the proposal are 

based on the need to make more efficient use of the site 
and provide additional income streams to facilitate 
improvements to the department store and ensure its 
retention in the town centre.   

 
 
4.6 Further details of the development are as follows: 
 

13

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

Site area 0.165 ha 
Existing use Retail 
Proposed use Retail and residential 
Existing parking spaces 0 
Proposed parking spaces 0 
Parking standard 0 
Number of affordable units 0 
Net increase in dwellings 42 
Proposed site density 250 dpha 

 
 
5.0 Policy Context 
 
5.1 Designation 
 

Urban area 
Horley Town Centre 
Primary Shopping area  

 
5.2      Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy  
           
           CS1(Sustainable Development) 
           CS5 (Valued People/Economic Development),  
           CS7 (Town/Local Centres),  
           CS10 (Sustainable Development),  
           CS11 (Sustainable Construction),  
           CS14 (Housing Needs)  
           CS15 (Affordable Housing) 

CS17 (Travel Options and accessibility) 
 
5.3      Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 
 

RET1 9Development within identified retail frontages and local centre 
DES1 (Design of new development) 
DES4 (Housing mix) 
DES5 (Delivering high quality homes ) 
DES6 (Affordable Housing) 
DES8 (Construction Management) 
TAP1 (Access, Parking and Servicing) 
CCF1 (Climate Change Mitigation) 
EMP5 (Local Skills and Training Opportunities) 
INF3 (Electronic communication networks) 

 
5.4 Other Material Considerations 
 

National Planning Policy Framework  

14

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

National Planning Practice Guidance 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Surrey Design 

Local Distinctiveness Design Guide 
Vehicle and Cycle Parking 
Guidance 2018 
Affordable Housing 

Other Human Rights Act 1998 
 Community Infrastructure Levy 

Regulations 2010 

                                                                             
 
6.0 Assessment 

 
6.1 The application site is within the urban area, where there is a presumption in 

favour of sustainable development and where the principle of residential 
development is acceptable.  
 

6.2 Policy RET1 relates specifically to development within identified retail 
frontages and local centres.  Part 2 of the policy offers encouragement to the 
provision of a range of uses, including residential flats to upper floors.    
 

6.3 There is no objection in principle to a potential redevelopment of the site and 
such a redevelopment would help the Council meet some of the Borough's 
identified housing need and furthermore would be welcomed as a contribution 
to housing supply.  However, the principle of acceptability in this case rests 
upon considering the impact of the proposal and resultant harm and the need 
to provide additional housing, and its resultant benefit. The following report 
sets out the key considerations. 

 
6.4 The main issues to consider are: 
 

• Design appraisal 
• Housing Mix and Standard of Accommodation   
• Neighbour amenity 
• Highway matters 
• Trees and Landscaping 
• Affordable Housing 
• Energy, Sustainability and Broadband 
• Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
Design appraisal 
 

6.5 DMP Policy DES1 relates to the Design of New Development and requires 
new development to be of a high quality design that makes a positive 
contribution to the character and appearance of its surroundings.  New 
development should promote and reinforce local distinctiveness and should 
respect the character of the surrounding area.  The policy states that new 
development will be expected to use high quality materials, landscaping and 

15

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

building detailing and have due regard to the layout, density, plot sizes, 
building siting, scale, massing, height, and roofscapes of the surrounding 
area, the relationship to neighbouring buildings, and important views into and 
out of the site.  
 

6.6 Whilst this is an outline planning application with all matters reserved, the 
drawings set illustrative design parameters in terms of what is proposed for 
the site including the volume and scale of development. In terms of local 
distinctiveness and urban design, the proposal steps down to Victoria Road 
but has  large number of storeys behind. The proposed building is lower than 
the Russell Square development opposite in terms of eaves height but has a  
higher number of storeys than those opposite and only equal to the tower at 
the end. As a result it is considered that the proposed development would be 
out of scale with its surroundings and harmful to the character of the area and 
there would be no realistic way of achieving the proposed quantum of 
accommodation without these harmful impacts.   
 

6.7 Furthermore, the illustrative plans submitted with the application show a 
building that raises an urban design issue, in terms of the form of the building.  
The proposed design illustrates a form of building which fails to follow the 
traditional rules of proportion and compositions for a classically based 
building with a lack of alignment of fenestration, a piling of forms on top of 
one another, with the repercussions of over squeezing storeys into the 
silhouette resulting in a disjointed appearance. Whilst indicative, they do 
illustrate the difficult that would be had in designing extensions that have due 
regard to the important architectural features of the existing building and 
harmonise with its scale and that of its surroundings. 
 

6.8 The proposed development would also be contrary to DMP Policy RET1: 
Development within identified retail frontages and local centres, which states 
that, inter alia, Within town centre primary and secondary frontages, and in 
local centres, 1b. Development must be of a character and scale appropriate 
to the nature and function of the centre in which it is located.  For these 
reasons, it is concluded that the proposed development is unacceptable and  
would be harmful to the character and appearance of the area as these 
policies expect all new development to be of high quality design that makes a 
positive contribution to the character and appearance of its surroundings. 
 

6.9 Although the application is in outline form, there appear to be contradictions 
in the drawings in relation to the existing Collingwood Batchellor Victorian 
building ie the Victoria Road frontage.  The drawings illustrate the layout of 
the proposed development in terms of the change to the first floor and the 
additional four storeys of residential accommodation and the proposed 
elevations of the extended building.    
 

6.10 The submitted drawings show that the façade of the existing Victorian 
Collingwood Batchellor store would cease to exist as it would be extended 
forward in the elevations  with the  gable removed and the elevation lowered, 
so effectively demolished. However, the floor plan seems to show a set back 

16

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

to the original footprint, which is confusing but not critical given the outline 
nature of the proposal.  
 

6.11 The Council’s conservation officer has reviewed the submitted plans and 
considers that the existing Victorian building should be considered as an 
undesignated heritage asset. It is an important townscape building, a furniture 
repository of the 1870’s and is valued locally.  The Horley Town Centre 
Regeneration SPD  does identify the Collingwood and Batchellor department 
store as a key building which contributes to the urban form of the town centre.  
 

6.12 It is therefore considered that the proposal is unacceptable as it is contrary to 
DMP Policy NHE9: Heritage assets which states, inter alia, “1. Development 
will be required to protect, preserve, and wherever possible enhance, the 
Borough’s designated and non-designated heritage assets and historic 
environment including special features, area character or settings of statutory 
and locally listed buildings.” 
 

 Housing Mix and Standard of Accommodation 
 

6.13 Policy DES4 requires that on sites of 20 homes or more that at least 30% of 
the market housing should be provided as smaller (1 and 2) bed homes and 
that at least 10% must have three or more bedrooms.  
 

6.14 The submitted plans shows a total of 29 flats to be used for market housing in 
a mix of 11 x 1 beds, 13 x 2 beds and 5 x 3 beds.  This accords with the 
requirements of DMP Policy DES4.  The affordable housing mix is discussed 
below.   
 

6.15 Policy DES5 requires that all new residential development must provide high 
quality adaptable accommodation and provide good living conditions for 
future occupants. New accommodation must meet the relevant nationally 
prescribed internal space standard for each individual unit unless the council 
considers that an exception should be made. Sufficient space must be 
included for storage, clothes drying and the provision of waste and recycling 
bins in the home.  Adequate outdoor amenity space including balconies and 
terraces and /or communal outdoor space should be provided. 

 
6.16 The drawings submitted illustrate that each flat proposed would accord with 

the appropriate space standard and would be provided with outdoor amenity 
space in the form of terraces, small balconies with further access to a 
communal terrace.  Although some flats would be single aspect only, in most 
case, the flats would also overlook a central glazed atrium providing further 
natural light to the rear of the units.    In this regard the proposals would 
comply with the requirements of DMP Policy DES5.   

 
Neighbour amenity 

 
6.17 In addition to the comments noted above DMP Policy DES1 also requires 

new development to provide an appropriate environment for future occupants 
whilst not adversely impacting upon the amenity of occupants of existing 

17

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

nearby buildings, including by way of overbearing, obtrusiveness, 
overshadowing, overlooking and loss of privacy. 
 

6.18 The closest residential properties to the site are located on the south-western 
side of Victoria Road in the Russell Square development.  The closest flats 
are located in the 4 storey element of Russell Square at the northern end in 
the second, third and fourth floors of that development.    The proposed flats 
in this case would be located over 25m away from the north-east facing 
elevation of Russell Square.  The applicants have provided a drawing which 
shows that the proposed development in this case would not break a line 
drawn at a 25 degree angle from the ground floor windows (2m above ground 
level) towards the proposed development.  This demonstrates that the 
proposed development would not result in overshadowing of the block of 
apartments Russell Square.   
 

6.19 The drawings also demonstrate that there would be a gap of over 25m 
between the facing elevations of the proposed development and Russell 
Square.  In normal circumstances, this distance is considered acceptable to 
mitigate the impact of the development on privacy and overlooking to 
neighbouring properties.    
 

6.20 The submitted plans show that the upper storeys of the proposed 
development would be set back from the lower ground and first floor storeys 
leading to a form of development would not be overbearing on its 
surroundings.   
 

6.21 Objections have been received due to the loss of private views, but this is not 
a material planning consideration.  Noise and disturbance resulting from the 
development when completed would be acceptable and accord with normal 
town centre environments whilst any resulting from construction would be 
temporary and could be mitigated by condition. Objection was raised on the 
grounds of inconvenience during the construction period. Whilst it is 
acknowledged there may be a degree of disruption during the construction 
phase, the proposal would not warrant refusal on this basis and statutory 
nuisance legislation exists to control any significant disturbance caused 
during the construction of the proposal. A construction method statement 
would be secured by planning condition if planning permission was to be 
granted.  
 

6.22 As a result, it is not considered that the proposals would have an acceptable 
impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties and would accord with the 
provisions of DMP Policy DES1 in this regard. 
 
Highway matters 
 

6.23 Policy TAP1 of the Development Management Plan 2019 requires new 
development to demonstrate that it would not adversely affect highways 
safety or the free flow of traffic, that it would provide sufficient off-street 
parking in accordance with published standards and that it would constitute 
development in a sustainable location 

18

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

 
6.24 The application has been reviewed by the County Highways Authority who 

note that the proposed development comprising of 15x1 one bed, 19x2 bed 
and 8x3 bed flats would require 42 car parking spaces for the flats and 9 
visitor spaces. It is noted that the proposed development would be located 
within acceptable walking distance of a  supermarket, and other retail outlets. 
The site is also well within acceptable walking distance of Horley Train 
Station which has links to Central London and East Croydon and their range 
of education, employment, retail and leisure land uses. The site is also well 
within walking distance of bus services to destinations further afield.   The site 
is in a location with no parking at any times restrictions and where parking is 
permitted it is between 1800 and 0600 hours Monday to Saturday and all day 
Sunday.   The site is therefore likely to be attractive to people who do not own 
a car. It is considered that any car users using the site would be able to use 
the Central Horley Car Park, and the on street parking restrictions would 
prevent inappropriate parking. 
 

6.25 The lack of parking on the site would clearly be contrary to DMP Policy TAP1 
and the adopted parking standards set out in Annex 4 of the DMP.  In such 
circumstances, Policy TAP1 states that  all types of development should 
include car parking and cycle storage for residential and non-residential 
development in accordance with adopted local standards (see Annex 4) 
unless satisfactory evidence is provided to demonstrate that non-compliance 
would not result in unacceptable harm. Such evidence could include on-street 
parking surveys, evidence of parking demand, and/ or further information on 
accessibility. Development should not result in unacceptable levels of on-
street parking demand in existing or new streets.  
 

6.26 In support of the application a Transport Note which states the following: 
 
• Horley train station is a 7 minute walk from the site. Horley train station 

provides cross-country services to a variety of destinations including direct 
rail links to central London, as well as local services. 

• There is a Town centre bus stop opposite site with six services: 
• Route Fastway 20: Frequent service operating between Broad field 

and Langshott, every 20 minutes in each direction at peak time.  
• Route 424: Service operating between Redhill and Crawley, 1 bus 

per hour in each direction.  
• Route 422: Less frequent service operating between Reigate and 

Crawley, 1 bus per 2 hours in each direction. 
• Route 324 and 524: School buses to / from St Bede’s School and 

Imberhorne Schools.  
• Route 26: Horley Town Bus, 1 bus per hour in a single direction the 

morning on Monday, Wednesday and Friday only.  
• The site is in very close proximity to Gatwick Airport located approximately 

1.8 miles away (5 minute drive, 33 minute walk). 
• The site is accessible on foot using existing foot-ways. It is a couple of 

minutes’ walk from the High Street. 

19

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

• The Reigate and Barnstead Cycling Plan sets out the local implementation 
of the Surrey Cycling Strategy. They have proposed that Victoria Road, 
which Horley Library is situated on, should have cycle friendly traffic 
management. This connects to existing signed advisory routes and 
greenways. 

• There are public footways located along the southern, western and eastern 
boundaries. 

• Vehicular access to the site is constrained by the highways issues on 
Victoria Road and its junction with Consort Way East, particularly 
restrictions relating to the impact on the signalized junction at this location 
and that at the junction of Victoria Road with Consort Way East. 

• Retention of the existing vehicular access location from Consort Way East 
has been the only option because of the need to also comply with the 
restrictions of the access easement to the adjoining land north of the site. 

• Service access to the Victoria Road frontage will be constrained by the  
requirements of Surrey County Council to ensure the safety of road users 
and pedestrians is maintained.  Servicing to shops will generally be from 
the rear of the site. 

 
6.27 No evidence has been provided in the form of on-street parking surveys, or 

evidence of parking demand.  However, the information on  the accessibility 
of the site is compelling and demonstrates that the site benefits from good 
access to public transport facilities, and to a good range of shops and 
services.  The application has been reviewed by the County Highway 
Authority who do not believe that the proposals would lead to unacceptable 
harm or unacceptable levels of demand for on-street parking due to the 
parking restrictions in the surrounding area.  On this basis, no objections are 
raised with regards to the lack of parking on the site.   
 
Affordable Housing  
 

6.28 Policy DES6 requires that on developments such as this providing 11 or more 
homes, that 30% of the homes on site should be affordable housing. It 
advises that vacant building credit will be applied with a methodology in the 
Affordable Housing SPD. 
 

6.29 Of the 42 units proposed in the development, 13 would be provided as 
affordable housing, all to be located on the third floor of the proposed 
development.  This equates to 30.9% and accords with the requirements of 
DMP Policy DES6. 
 

6.30 The mix and tenure of the proposed units to be allocated for affordable 
housing has been agreed with the Council’s Housing team.  The mix includes 
8 units in a mix of 1, 2 and 3 bedrooms for social rented tenure and 5 units for 
shared ownership also in a mix of 1, 2 and 3 bedroom units.  In this regard 
the proposals comply with the requirements for the provision of affordable 
housing set out in the Council’s adopted SPG on Affordable housing.  In the 
event that planning permission was to be granted, any permission would be 
subject to a legal agreement which would bring forward the affordable 
housing units.   

20

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

 
Energy, Sustainability and Broadband 

 
6.31 In accordance with adopted policy, if permission was to be granted, 

conditions would be imposed to seek the installation of carbon reduction 
measures within the development to secure energy savings through the use 
of renewable technologies where appropriate and the provision of fast 
broadband services for future residents to ensure that the dwellings are future 
proofed.   
 
Drainage 
 

6.32 In support of the application,  a surface water drainage strategy has been 
submitted and has been assessed by Surrey CC Sustainable Drainage team  
against the requirements of the NPPF, its accompanying PPG and the Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for sustainable drainage systems. They state 
that they are satisfied that the proposed drainage scheme meets the 
requirements set out in the aforementioned documents and are content with 
the development proposed, subject to the imposition of conditions requiring 
the submission of a detailed drainage scheme and a verification report. 

 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 
6.33 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a fixed charge which the Council 

will be collecting from some new developments from 1 April 2016. It will raise 
money to help pay for a wide range of infrastructure including schools, road, 
public transport and community facilities which are needed to support new 
development. This development would be CIL liable and the exact amount 
would be determined and collected after the grant of any planning 
permission. 
 
Conclusion  

 
6.34 When considering the balance between the benefits and the harm identified, 

the Local Planning Authority has sought to act proactively and positively in 
determining the planning application. In addition, encouragement and 
recognition of the contribution of sustainable development, including the 3 
main strands of economic, social and environmental have been fully 
considered. In this case the LPA has raised and resolved issues where 
possible and where the time constraints of a live application allow.  
 

6.35 The main starting point for the consideration is that the proposal is within the 
urban area and a redevelopment of the site to provide a more effective and 
efficient use of the site and provide a residential development would be 
acceptable in principle. However, the design of the proposal is poor and 
would be a harmful development.   
 

6.36 Significant weight should be given to the fact that a development upon the 
scale of the proposal could demonstrate a contribution towards housing 
delivery, provide a type of housing within demand in the Borough and 

21

Agenda Item 5



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 5 
7th July 2021  21/00205/OUT  

opportunity for economic growth. Arguments regarding the benefit of the 
proposal in securing the store’s future are not based in any evidence 
submitted in support of the application, nor has any evidence been provided 
that a scheme of reduced scale could not also achieve the same benefits. 
 

6.37 Weighing significantly against the scheme are the impact upon the character 
and appearance of the building and surrounding area that the proposed 
quantum of accommodation would have. In this case, with an up to date Core 
Strategy and policy framework, the development is considered contrary to the 
development plan and the adverse impacts are considered to outweigh the 
benefits significantly and demonstrably when assessed against the Policy 
Framework; accordingly, for the reasons set out above it is considered that 
this application should be refused. If refusing for this reason it is also 
appropriate to refuse for a second reason regarding the current absence of a 
legal agreement under s106 to secure the affordable housing. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
Planning permission is REFUSED for the following reasons:  
 
1 The proposal would, by virtue of the additional height, bulk and mass of the 

proposed additional storeys result in an unacceptable form of development, 
which would appear unduly prominent, out of keeping with and harmful to the 
character and appearance of the host building and of the surrounding area, 
contrary to policies RET1, DES1 and NHE9 Reigate and Banstead 
Development Management Plan 2019 and the provisions of the Council's 
Local Distinctiveness Design Guide SPD. 
 

2 In the absence of a legal agreement under Section 106 to secure 13 units of 
affordable housing, the proposed development would be contrary to Policy 
CS14 o the Core Strategy 2014 (reviewed 2019); Policy DES6 of the 
Development Management Plan 2019 and the provisions of the Council's 
Affordable Housing SPD. 

 
 

 
 
 

22

Agenda Item 5



HORLEY

2

9

3

7

4

1

6
8

b

Diana W
alk

72

73

83

4
3

77

66

79
74

78

99

19

69

75

32

12

97

10

67

87

48

38

70

95

65

22

46

28

80

24

93

36

71

68

60

23

91

2A

11

57.0m

56.6m

56.7m

57.6m

Walk

SL

Bank

Par
ad

e

E
A

S
T

LB

10
a

Imperial

CO
NSO

RT

Car Park

Russell Square

RUSSELLS CRESCENT

Prin
ce

ss
 P

re
ci

nct

1 to
 10

1 to
 78

Posts

50 to 58

ShelterEl S
ub S

ta

Wykeham House

El Sub Sta

3

1

Shelter

9

2
3

56.7m

8

10

2

9

Car Park

El Sub Sta

81

13

Ban
k

Ban
k

Pre
m

ie
r

W
AY

Building

Sovereign

C
O

N
S

O
R

T
 W

A
Y

 E
A

S
T

1 to
 31 to 12

1 to 43

101

44
b

Hereford House

Turnpike Cottage

Police Station

87

1

Scale

21/00205/OUT - Collingwood Batchellor, 46 - 48 Victoria Road
Horley

Crown Copyright Reserved.  Reigate and Banstead Borough Council.
Licence No - 100019405-2018

Legend

1:1,250

23

Agenda Item 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

PROPOSED ENTRANCE

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

EXISTING ENTRANCE

Two Tier cycle parking (30)

Electrical services room

MAIN LOBBY FOR FLATS

Bin Store

Two Tier cycle parking (34)

services entry for retail

LIFT

S
T

A
I
R

 
1

LIFT

STAIR 2

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

R01 - P01

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Plans

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

15-06-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

Description Date

no of units revised

to 42 from 43

21.04.21R01

24

A
genda Item

 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

LIFT

LIFT

S
T

A
I
R

 
1

STAIR 2

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Plans

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

15-06-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

N

Description Date

no of units revised

to 42 from 43

21.04.21R01

R01 - P02

25

A
genda Item

 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

Gross Internal Area                        Type

Ground     1649.4sqm    (as existing)           Retail

First          1549.0sqm    (as existing)           Retail

Second     1242.8sqm                                   Flats

Third         1014.1sqm                                   Flats

Fourth         809.3 sqm                                  Flats

Fifth            756.0sqm                                    Flats

1 BED        2 BED      3 BED

AFFORDABLE

PRIVATE

1 BED        2 BED        3 BED

Second       4                6                3               13

Third           4                6                3               13

Fourth         5                4                1               10

Fifth            2                3                 1                6

Total      15         19          8           42

35%                 45%               20% (13 affordable

required @ of 30%)

FLAT 01

3B 4P

80.5m2

FLAT 08

2B 4P

74m2

LIFT

S
T

A
I
R

 
1

FLAT 05

3B 5P

86m2

FLAT 03

1B

51m2

FLAT 04

1B

50m2

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
G

R
O

U
N

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

TERRACE

3
0
0
0TERRACE

TERRACE

TERRACE

TERRACE

3000

TERRACE

TERRACE

TERRACE

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
F

I
R

S
T

 
F

L
O

O
R

)

TERRACE

TERRACE TERRACE

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FLAT 06

1B 1P

45m2

FLAT 12

2B 4P

70m2

FLAT 13

2B 4P

70m2

FLAT 10

2B 3P

61m2

FLAT 09

2B 4P

76m2

FLAT 07

2B 4P

70m2

3000

FLAT 11

3B 4P

78.1m2

1200

LIFT

S
T

A
I
R

 
2

1500

1
5
0
0

2
0
0
0

2
5
0
0

FLAT 02

1B

51m2

atrium

atrium

atrium

atrium

3
0
0
0

1
7
2
7

TERRACE

T
E

R
R

A
C

E

TERRACE

3000

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Description Date

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Plans

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

15-06-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

N

no of units revised

to 42 from 43

21.04.21R01

R01 - P03

26

A
genda Item

 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

3000

FLAT 14

3B 4P

80.5m2

FLAT 26

2B 4P

70m2

FLAT 25

2B 4P

70m2

FLAT 23

2B 3P

61m2

FLAT 21

2B 4P

74m2

3000

1200

S
T

A
I
R

 
1

S
T

A
I
R

 
2

2
5
0
0

TERRACE

FLAT 15

1B 2P

51m2

FLAT 16

1B 2P

51m2

FLAT 17

1B 2P

50m2

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
G

R
O

U
N

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
F

I
R

S
T

 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
S

E
C

O
N

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

atrium

atrium

atrium

atrium

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y
B

A
L
C

O
N

Y
B

A
L
C

O
N

Y

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y
B

A
L
C

O
N

Y
B

A
L
C

O
N

Y

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y

Gross Internal Area                        Type

Ground     1649.4sqm    (as existing)           Retail

First          1549.0sqm    (as existing)           Retail

Second     1242.8sqm                                   Flats

Third         1014.1sqm                                   Flats

Fourth         809.3 sqm                                  Flats

Fifth            756.0sqm                                    Flats

1 BED        2 BED      3 BED

1 BED        2 BED        3 BED

Second       4                6                3               13

Third           4                7                2               13

Fourth         5                4                1               10

Fifth            2                3                 1                6

Total      15         19          8           42

35%                 45%               20%

FLAT 19

1B 2P

50m2

FLAT 22

2B 4P

76m2

FLAT 20

2B 4P

70m2

FLAT 24

2B 4P

75.6m2

LIFT

LIFT

1500

FLAT 18

3B 5P

86m2

1
5
0
0

2
0
0
0

TERRACE TERRACE TERRACE TERRACE

3
0
0
0

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y
B

A
L
C

O
N

Y
B

A
L
C

O
N

Y
B

A
L
C

O
N

Y
B

A
L
C

O
N

Y
B

A
L
C

O
N

Y

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y
B

A
L
C

O
N

Y

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y

B
A

L
C

O
N

Y

1
7
2
7

AFFORDABLE

PRIVATE

(13 affordable

required @ of 30%)

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Plans

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

26-05-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

N

Description Date

no of units revised

to 42 from 43

21.04.21R01

R02 - P04

27

A
genda Item

 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

TERRACE

TERRACE

FLAT 32

2B 4P

70m2

TERRACE

FLAT 36

2B 3P

64m2

FLAT 27

2B 4P

70m2

FLAT 33

1B 2P

54m2

FLAT 34

1B 2P

56m2

FLAT 35

3B 5P

94m2

LIFT

LIFT

S
T

A
I
R

 
1

S
T

A
I
R

 
2

1500

2
0
0
0

2
5
0
0

TERRACE

TERRACE

TERRACE

1
5
0
0

TERRACE

3715 3000 3000

FLAT 28

1B

50m2

FLAT 29

1B

50m2

FLAT 30

1B

50m2

FLAT 31

2B 3P

61m2

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
G

R
O

U
N

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
F

I
R

S
T

 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
T

H
I
R

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
T

H
I
R

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)
 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
T

H
I
R

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
S

E
C

O
N

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

atrium

atrium

atrium

atrium

TERRACE

TERRACE
TERRACE

Gross Internal Area                        Type

AFFORDABLE

PRIVATE

35%                 45%               20% (13 affordable

required @ of 30%)

Ground     1649.4sqm    (as existing)           Retail

First          1549.0sqm    (as existing)           Retail

Second     1242.8sqm                                   Flats

Third         1014.1sqm                                   Flats

Fourth         809.3 sqm                                  Flats

Fifth            756.0sqm                                    Flats

1 BED        2 BED      3 BED

1 BED        2 BED        3 BED

Second       4                6                3               13

Third           4                6                3               13

Fourth         5                4                1               10

Fifth            2                3                 1                6

Total      15         19          8           42

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Plans

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

15-06-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

N

Description Date

no of units revised

to 42 from 43

21.04.21R01

R01 - P05

28

A
genda Item

 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

TERRACE
TERRACE

FLAT 40

2B 3P

61m2

FLAT 41

1B 2P

50m2

FLAT 42

3B 4P

85 m2

FLAT 39

1B 1P

44m2

LIFT

LIFT

S
T

A
I
R

 
1

S
T

A
I
R

 
2

1500

3715

FLAT 37

2B 4p

70m2

FLAT 38

2B 4p

74 m2

4
0
0
0

5500

2500 3000

6
0
0
0

3
0
0
0

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
G

R
O

U
N

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
F

I
R

S
T

 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
T

H
I
R

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
T

H
I
R

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
S

E
C

O
N

D
 
F

L
O

O
R

)

 
F

L
A

T
 
R

O
O

F
 
(
F

O
R

T
H

 
F

L
O

O
R

)

TERRACE

TERRACE

TERRACE

152 m2

TERRACE

TERRACE

TERRACE

TERRACE

2
5
0
0

1
5
0
0

atrium

1 BED        2 BED      3 BED

AFFORDABLE

PRIVATE

1 BED        2 BED        3 BED

Second       4                6                3               13

Third           4                6                3               13

Fourth         5                4                1               10

Fifth            2                3                 1                6

Total      15         19          8           42

35%                 45%               20% (13 affordable

required @ of 30%)

2
0
0
0

atrium

atrium

atrium

Gross Internal Area                        Type

Ground     1649.4sqm    (as existing)           Retail

First          1549.0sqm    (as existing)           Retail

Second     1242.8sqm                                   Flats

Third         1014.1sqm                                   Flats

Fourth         809.3 sqm                                  Flats

Fifth            756.0sqm                                    Flats

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Plans

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

15-06-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

N

Description Date

no of units revised

to 42 from 43

21.04.21R01

R01 - P06

29

A
genda Item

 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

ROOF PLAN

LIFT HEAD ROOM

LIFT HEAD ROOM

FLAT ROOF

GLASS ROOF

FLAT ROOF

FLAT ROOF

TILES CLADDING

MANSARD ROOF

TILES CLADDING

MANSARD ROOF

TILES CLADDING

MANSARD ROOF

TILES CLADDING

MANSARD ROOF

FLAT ROOF

FLAT ROOF

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Plans

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

15-06-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

N

Description Date

no of units revised

to 42 from 43

21.04.21R01

R01 - P07

30

A
genda Item

 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

(facade on Consort Way E)

FFL

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D

27342 6000

22941 60003000

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION

(facade on Victoria Road)

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

3
2

9
0

3
2

9
0

3
2

9
0

2
9

0
0

2
9

0
0

2
9

0
0

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

3
2

9
0

3
2

9
0

3
2

9
0

2
9

0
0

2
9

0
0

2
9

0
0

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Description Date

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Elevations

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

04-01-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

R01 - P08(A)

31

A
genda Item

 5



FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

2
9
0
0

2
9
0
0

2
9
0
0

0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION

(facade on Victoria Road)

SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

(facade on Consort Way E)

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

2
9
0
0

2
9
0
0

2
9
0
0

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Description Date

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Elevations

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

04-01-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

Sun Light Angle

R01 - P08 (B)

32

A
genda Item

 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

STAAC

NORTH EAST ELEVATION

(facade on Consort Way E)

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

NORTH WEST ELEVATION

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D

6000

27285 40006000

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D

2
9
0
0

2
9
0
0

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

2
9
0
0

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

1500

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

33257 16630

4000

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

P09 (A)

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Description Date

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Elevation

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

04-01-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

33

A
genda Item

 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

NORTH EAST ELEVATION

(facade on Consort Way E)

2
9
0
0

2
9
0
0

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

2
9
0
0

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

2
9
0
0

2
9
0
0

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

NORTH WEST ELEVATION

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

P09 (B)

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Description Date

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Elevation

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

04-01-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

34

A
genda Item

 5



SOUTH WEST STREET SCENE

(facade on Victoria Road)

Consort Way E

Ice Land

Pie & Mash Cafe

Diamond Kebab

Spice Boys

New man House

0
2

4 6 8 10

1:200 SCALE in METRES

12 14 16 18 20

SOUTH EAST STREET SCENE

(facade on Consort Way E)

Victoria Road

New man House

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION

(facade on Victoria Road)

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

(facade on Consort Way E)

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

P10

Scale1:200@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Description Date

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Street

Scene

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

04-01-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

35

A
genda Item

 5



25° Angle Indication - SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

(facade on Consort Way E)

flat windows opposite

Victoria Road

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

P11

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Description Date

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Elevations

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

04-01-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

Sun Light Angle

36

A
genda Item

 5



25° Angle Indication - SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

(facade on Consort Way E)

flat windows opposite

Victoria Road

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

P11

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Description Date

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Elevations

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

04-01-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

Sun Light Angle

37

A
genda Item

 5



0 2 4 6 8 10

1:100 SCALE in METRES

STAAC

NORTH EAST ELEVATION

(facade on Consort Way E)

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

NORTH WEST ELEVATION

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D

6000

27285 40006000

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D

2
9
0
0

2
9
0
0

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

FOURTH FLOOR PLAN

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

2
9
0
0

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

3
2
9
0

2000

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

33257 16630

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

P09 (A)

Scale1:100@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Description Date

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Elevation

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

04-01-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

38

A
genda Item

 5



SOUTH WEST STREET SCENE

(facade on Victoria Road)

Consort Way E

Ice Land

Pie & Mash Cafe

Diamond Kebab

Spice Boys

New man House

0
2

4 6 8 10

1:200 SCALE in METRES

12 14 16 18 20

SOUTH EAST STREET SCENE

(facade on Consort Way E)

Victoria Road

New man House

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION

(facade on Victoria Road)

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

FFL

COLLINGWOOD BATCHELLOR

SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

(facade on Consort Way E)

Project No

Date

Drawn by
IA

P10

Scale1:200@A1

Drawing No

NOTES:

Description Date

Drawing

title:

Only figured dimensions are to be used for

construction

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with

all relevant Architects and Engineers drawings

All dimensions are to be verified on site prior

to work commencing

Proposed Street

Scene

Address:

Client:

Project:

Studio1, The Hub

3 Drove Road

Newhaven

East sussex

BN9 0AD

t: 01323 325354

t: 01932 506111

t: 0808 1699964 /free/

e: support@staac.co.uk

STAAC

19113

04-01-20

Proposed Extension

Collingwood Batchellor

46-48 Victoria Road,

Horley, Surrey RH6 7QE

39

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank

40



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 7th July 2021  

REPORT OF: HEAD OF PLACES & PLANNING 

AUTHOR: Matthew Sheahan 

TELEPHONE: 01737 276514 

EMAIL: Matthew.sheahan@reigate-banstead.gov.uk 

AGENDA ITEM: 6 WARD: EWB - Earlswood And Whitebushes 

 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00413/F   VALID: 11/03/2021 
APPLICANT: Beaufort Homes Ltd AGENT: Ka Architectural Ltd  
LOCATION: 29 WOODLANDS ROAD REDHILL SURREY RH1 6EY 
DESCRIPTION: Construction of two detached four bedroom houses including 

access road and parking/ landscaping. As amended on 
17/06/2021 

All plans in this report have been reproduced, are not to scale, and are for 
illustrative purposes only. The original plans should be viewed/referenced for 
detail. 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This is a full application for the erection of two four bedroom detached dwellings to 
the rear of 29 Woodlands Road in Redhill. The area is predominantly residential in 
character, defined by a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced dwellings, 
alongside a smaller number of flatted developments.  
 
The application follows the refusal of a scheme for a terrace of 3 x 4-bedroom houses, 
refused by the Planning Committee in February for the following reason: 
 
The proposed development, by reason of the height, bulk, scale and mass of the building, 
combined with the small plot size of each dwelling and proximity to the side and rear 
boundaries, would constitute a cramped form of development, inconsistent with the pattern 
of development in locality, which would be out of keeping with and harmful to the character 
of the area. This would be contrary to policies DES1 and DES2 of the Reigate and 
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 and advice contained within the Local 
Distinctiveness Design Guide SPG and the NPPF. 
 
The proposal undoubtedly improves upon the refused scheme in this regard and 
dwellings would be of a traditional design, being hipped roofs with pitched roof gables 
to the front and rear elevations. The properties would utilise traditional materials, 
being tile hung to the principal elevation at the first floor with facing brickwork and 
modest elements of architectural detailing, the colour palette and design reflecting the 
character of the surrounding area and the Surrey Vernacular. The dwellings would be 

41

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

parallel to the donor property and the road, with appropriately sized rear gardens and 
plots that would not be overly cramped.  
 
The donor property is locally listed and therefore comprises a non-designated heritage 
asset but by virtue of the set-back location and subservient size and design of the 
properties, there would not be significant harm to the setting of the non-designated 
heritage asset. What harm would occur would be outweighed by the benefits of the 
scheme in providing two additional housing units. 
 
The dwellings would provide four bedrooms and a level of living space that would 
comply with Policies DES5 of the Development Management Plan and Nationally 
Described Space Standards. The development would also accord with the Councils’ 
Residential Parking Standards, requiring 4 parking spaces to be provided. Two further 
spaces would be retained to the front of the plot to provide parking for the donor 
property. The County Highway Authority has assessed the application and is satisfied 
that the development would not give rise to harm to the safe operation of the highway 
and that the level of parking is acceptable and have recommended conditions.  
 
There are no protected trees on site however it is proposed to remove a number of 
trees to accommodate the development. These are of low quality and would be 
replaced as part of a future landscaping scheme. The site does have the potential to 
provide habitat for a variety of wildlife species; however protected species, such as 
bats, have not been identified as having a significant presence within the site. The 
Surrey Wildlife Trust has been consulted and have recommended that works proceed 
in a precautionary manner to ensure that existing habitats are not harmed or 
disturbed.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
Planning permission is GRANTED subject to conditions. 
 

 

42

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

Consultations: 
 
Highway Authority: has undertaken an assessment in terms of safety, capacity and 
policy grounds and have recommended conditions requiring the construction of the 
proposed access road in accordance with the approved plans, the provision of 
pedestrian inter-visibility splays, the provision of 6 parking spaces in accordance with 
the approved plans, the submission of a construction transport management plan prior 
to commencement of development, and the installation of electric vehicle charging 
points 
 
Neighbourhood Services: No objection has been raised and have confirmed that the 
placement of the bin collection would be acceptable.  
 
Network Rail: No objection subject to informatives.  
 
UK Power Networks: No objection subject to informatives. 
 
SCC Minerals and Waste Authority: No objections raised.  
 
Representations: 
 
Letters were sent to neighbouring properties on 16th March 2021. A total of 27 
responses were received. The following issues have been raised:  
 
Overdevelopment  
Out of character with the surrounding area 
Overdevelopment 
Alternative location/ proposal 
Overlooking and loss of privacy 
Overbearing relationship 
Overshadowing 
No need for the development  
Loss of/ harm to trees 
Loss of private view 
Hazard to highway safety 
Inadequate parking  
Increased traffic congestion 
Inconvenience during construction 
Increased Noise and disturbance 
Harm to Green Belt/ countryside 
Drainage/ sewerage capacity   
Property values  
Crime fears 
Health fears 

 

    See paragraph 6.4-6.8 
See paragraph 6.4.-6.8 
See paragraph 6.4-6.8 
See paragraph 6.4-6.8 
See paragraph 6.13-6.22 
See paragraph 6.13-6.22 
See paragraph 6.13-6.22 
See paragraph 6.4-6.5 
See paragraph 6.23-6.25 
See paragraph 6.13-6.22 
See paragraph 6.26-6.29 
See paragraph 6.26-6.29 
See paragraph 6.26-6.29 
See paragraph 6.26-6.29 
See paragraph 6.26-6.29 
See paragraph 6.13-6.22 
See paragraph 6.13-6.22 
Not a material consideration 
No perceptible increase in crime 
No perceptible harm to health 

43

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

 
1.0 Site and Character Appraisal 
 
1.1 The application site currently comprises a residential plot on the east side of 

Woodlands Road, to the south of Redhill. The side is occupied by a large 
detached dwellinghouse to the front of the plot, which is a locally listed building. 
The plot is large and rectangular in shape, with good tree cover along the 
boundaries and within the site, with the ground level sloping down from west 
to east towards the rear. The railway line runs past the rear of the site, the 
embankment of which is quite heavily lined with trees. 
 

1.2 The area is predominantly residential in character, comprised of a mix 
detached, semi-detached and terraced dwellinghouses in a range of 
architectural styles and ages, with blocks of flats being found on the east side 
of the road. Two bus tops are located immediately outside the site and 
Earlswood Station is located approximately 220m to the south.  
 

2.0 Added Value 
 
2.1 Improvements secured at the pre-application stage: Formal pre-application 

advice was not sought from the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
submission of the application.   

 
2.2 Improvements secured during the course of the application: Amended plans 

have not been sought during the application process and the proposal is 
deemed to be acceptable.  

 
2.3 Further improvements could be secured: Improvements to the scheme could 

be secured by way of suitably worded conditions and the imposition of 
informatives.  

 
   
3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History 
              

The following list of applications are relevant to the consideration of this 
application: 
 
06/00343/F Erection of a three 

storey building to the 
front of the site 
incorporating nine flats 
with three terraced 
properties to the rear 
and associated parking 
 

Refused 5th June 2006 
Appeal Dismissed 18th 
January 2007 

20/01212/F Construction of three 
terraced four-bedroom 
houses including 
access road and 
parking/landscaping. 

Refused 4th February 
2021 (Appeal 
submitted) 

44

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

 
4.0 Proposal and Design Approach 

 
4.1 This is a full application for the construction of two 4 bedroom detached 

dwellings to the rear of 29 Woodlands Road. The dwellings would be of a 
traditional architectural style, comprised of pitched roof gables to the front and 
rear elevations. The overall height of the dwellings would be 7.3m, a depth in 
to the rear of the site of 10.2m. The upper floor is proposed to be tile hung, with 
stock and red facing brickwork for the lower floor and clay plain tile for the roof. 
Some modest detailing would feature to the gables, bargeboards, and roof 
ridge. A small pitched roof dormer would also feature to both the front and rear 
elevations of each dwelling. The height of the dwellings would be 1.8m lower 
than the previously refused scheme for three dwellings and 1m less in width.  
 

4.2 Externally each property would have an area of garden space to the rear, 
divided by fencing, with small shallow areas of patio immediately to the rear of 
the house. A total of four parking spaces would be provided to the front to serve 
the proposed new dwellings, with an additional two spaces sited in front of the 
donor property to serve the existing dwelling. Additional landscaping would 
feature around the site and along the access road.  
 

4.3 A design and access statement should illustrate the process that has led to the 
development proposal, and justify the proposal in a structured way, by 
demonstrating the steps taken to appraise the context of the proposed 
development.  It expects applicants to follow a four-stage design process 
comprising: 
Assessment; 
Involvement; 
Evaluation; and 
Design. 
 

4.4 Evidence of the applicant’s design approach is set out below: 
 

Assessment Woodlands Road is identified as having a broad mix of 
housing types, ages and styles; however the majority are 
of the late Victorian/ Edwardian era. The road is 
considered to have a fairly consistent building line. No. 
29 dates from late C19, probably 1880s. It is faced in clay 
plain tiles with decorative bands of club tiles to most of 
the front elevation and upper parts of the 
side and rear elevations. It has ornate bargeboards and 
finials on the front gables. It has sash windows. Part of 
the ground floor is faced in Reigate stone. It has a clay 
tiled roof and a decorative timber entrance porch. It is 
locally listed. Adjacent houses to the north date from 
slightly earlier. They are a pair of semidetached houses 
with gabled fronts in ornate brickwork with stone 
dressings. The bricks are a mixture of stock and red 
facings. 

45

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

The presence of trees on and adjacent to the rear of the 
site.  

Involvement No community consultation is identified as having taken 
place.  

Evaluation It is not indicated that alternative development options 
have been considered.  

Design The design, form and scale of the proposed dwellings 
has been informed by both the identified character of the 
surrounding area, which would be reflected by the 
proposed pitched roof, gabled form, as well as taking into 
account the reasons for refusal of the previous 
application.   
The proposed scheme pays homage to the donor house, 
with decorative tiling to the first floor, including courses 
of club tiles. There will be steep gables and dormers 
with decorative bargeboards similar to those of the 
existing house. Windows will be sashes to match 
existing. There will be a recessed roofed porch to each 
house, with a decorative timber surround. The use of 
stock bricks with projecting decorative string courses, 
also reflects the design of nos. 25 & 27 Woodlands Road. 

 
4.5 Further details of the development are as follows: 
 

Site area 
Site Density 
Proposed Parking Spaces 

0.1545 hectares 
19.4 d.p.h 
3 

Parking standard 2 car parking spaces per 4 bedroom 
house in an area of high accessibility 

 
5.0 Policy Context 
 
5.1 Designation 
 
 Urban area 
 
5.2       Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy  
           
           CS1(Sustainable Development) 
           CS10 (Sustainable Development),  
            
5.3       Reigate & Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 
 

Design 
 
Access and Parking 
 

DES1 DES2 DES4 DES5 DES6 
DES8  
TAP1 Annex 4 Parking Standards 
 

46

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

Climate change resilience and 
flooding 
 
Natural and Historic Environment 
 

CCF1 
 
 
NHE3 NHE9  
 

      
5.4 Other Material Considerations 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
2019 
National Planning Practice Guidance 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance Surrey Design 
Local Distinctiveness Design Guide 
A Parking Strategy for Surrey 
Parking Standards for Development 
 

Other Human Rights Act 1998 
                                                                            Community Infrastructure Levy   
                                                                            Regulations 2010 
 
6.0 Assessment  
 
6.1 The application seeks permission for the erection of 2x4 bedroom dwellings, 

including access road, parking and landscaping.  
 

• Principle of the development 
• Design Assessment. 
• Amenity of future occupiers. 
• Impact on neighbouring amenity. 
• Trees and Landscaping. 
• Highway Matters. 
• Ecology. 
• CIL 
Principle of the development 
 

6.2 The site is located within the urban area where there is not an in principle 
objection to the introduction of new residential development. In considering the 
appeal against the refusal of application 06/00343/F, the inspector considered 
that the site is suitable for redevelopment in principle ‘but only if the design is 
good enough.’ Therefore the acceptability of the proposal rests with 
consideration of the design of the proposal and its impact on the character of 
the area, impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties, parking and 
highway implications, as well as any impact on trees, existing landscaping and 
ecology.  
 

6.3 The proposal follows a previous application which was refused at planning 
committee on the 20th January 2021. The application was refused for the 
following reason: 

47

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

 
The proposed development, by reason of the height, bulk, scale and mass of 
the building, combined with the small plot size of each dwelling and proximity 
to the side and rear boundaries, would constitute a cramped form of 
development, inconsistent with the pattern of development in locality, which 
would be out of keeping with and harmful to the character of the area. This 
would be contrary to policies DES1 and DES2 of the Reigate and Banstead 
Development Management Plan 2019 and advice contained within the Local 
Distinctiveness Design Guide SPG and the NPPF 2019.  
 
Design Assessment 
 

6.4 As described earlier in this report, the design of the dwellings has been 
informed by the character of both the Victorian/ Edwardian style houses in the 
immediate vicinity of the site, particularly the locally listed frontage building, 
whilst acknowledging the mix of architectural styles along Woodlands Road 
and its surroundings. The dwellings would be representative of the typical 
Surrey vernacular form, with pitched roof gables with architectural detailing to 
the bargeboards, tile hung first floor and Tawney colour palette of materials, 
which would be appropriate within the context of the area and not harmful to its 
character. The siting of the dwellings to the rear of the plot at a lower ground 
level than the donor property would ensure that views of the development from 
the wider road are minimal. Even if it were more visible its appearance would 
not be harmful given its design, which echo’s the donor dwelling. It should be 
noted that in consideration of the 2006 dismissed scheme, for a much larger 
building, the inspector found no issue with the architectural design, which is not 
dissimilar to the proposed dwellings with respect to the use of gables and 
pitched roofs.  
 

6.5 The property is locally listed and therefore represents a non-designated 
heritage asset. Policy NHE9 of the DMP provides that where harm to a non-
designated heritage asset would result, the harm will be balanced against the 
benefits. In this case the harm is considered to be less than substantial and 
outweighed by the benefits of the scheme. The Conservation Officer has been 
consulted with regard to the impact on the setting of the locally listed building 
and has raised no objection subject to conditions seeking to control materials 
and specific architectural detailing.  
 

6.6 The depth of the dwellings would be 10.2m. It would be sited 1.8m from the 
north boundary at the closest point and 3.4m from the south boundary. It is 
therefore slightly closer to the northern boundary than the previous scheme 
(2.2metres) and further away from the southern boundary (1.9 metres). This 
level of spacing around the dwellings is considered to be acceptable, 
conforming with the spacing between buildings observed within Woodlands 
Road. Whilst the provision of parking would introduce hardstanding in to the 
middle of the site, it would be a significant reduction over both the previous 
development proposals, and there would be sufficient space around the 
development for landscaping to assist with softening the appearance of the 
harder landscaped elements. The distance to the rear boundary would be 
similar to the previous scheme at around 10.1m for plot 1, increasing to 11m 

48

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

for plot 2, following the line of the rear boundary, affording an area of rear 
garden space that would increase the level of spaciousness.  
 

6.7 The height and width of the dwellings has reduced from the previously refused 
scheme, and removed the accommodation in the roof, to a point where it is not 
considered that the dwellings would constitute overdevelopment, appear 
cramped or be particularly excessive in bulk and mass.  
 

6.8 To conclude, the design, scale, height and mass of the proposed dwellings, 
combined with the level of spaciousness around the dwellings, is considered 
to be acceptable and would accord with Policies DES1 and DES2 of the 
Development Management Plan 2019 and Local Distinctiveness Guide in this 
regard.  
 
Amenity for future occupants 
 

6.9 It is a fundamental objective of planning policy and stated within the National 
Planning Policy Framework that we provide high quality housing that is well 
designed and built to a high standard. The advice is amplified further by policies 
DES2 and DES5 of the Development Management Plan, which requires 
developments to demonstrate that dwellings have been designed to ensure 
that a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants and meet 
the minimum relevant nationally described space standards and be arranged 
to ensure that habitable rooms are arranged to have an acceptable outlook and 
where possible receive direct sunlight.  
 

6.10 The proposal is for 2x4 bed dwellings. Both dwellings would be two storeys in 
height although the first floor would be partially accommodated within the roof. 
Nationally Described Space Standards require a 4 bedroom two storey 
dwelling to provide a minimum of 103 sq. metres. Both plots would have a floor 
area of approx..150 sq. The dwellings would therefore far exceed the 
requirements of Policy DES5 in this regard.  

 
6.11 Externally each property would have a garden. These would be varied in size, 

with plot 1 being slightly smaller accounting for the angle of the rear boundary. 
They would be smaller than the existing dwelling occupying the site, however 
they would not be wholly out of character with the surrounding area in this 
regard. Numbers 31 and 33 Woodlands Road, also large semi-detached 
dwellings, are noted to have particularly small rear gardens. Properties to the 
north of Woodlands Road are identified as having gardens of a similar depth to 
those being proposed.  
 

6.12 It is considered that the living environment for future occupants would be 
acceptable. Each dwelling would also have access to appropriate levels of 
communal amenity space and would accord with National Space Standards.  
In this regards the proposal would accord with DMP Policy DES5. 
 
Impact on neighbouring amenity 
 

49

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

6.13 The proposed dwellings would be sited to the north of numbers 2-12 St Johns 
Road, a row of semi-detached properties with long rear gardens (between 16-
20m in depth to the shared boundary with the site). These properties are sited 
at a lower ground level than the proposed dwellings. The boundary between 
the two sites is currently well screened by existing trees and other vegetation, 
which would reduce the level of view of the building from the neighbouring 
properties. It is noted that two of these trees (a Sycamore and an Ash) would 
be removed however they would be replaced as part of any future landscaping 
scheme by three new trees. The proposed dwellings would be 3.1m away from 
the shared boundary at the closest point, widening to 4.7m towards the rear, 
and in excess of 20m from the rear elevations of the neighbours. Given this 
distance, coupled with the amount of screening, it is considered that the 
development would not be significantly overbearing in nature. There are no 
upper floor side windows proposed therefore there is no concern with regard 
to overlooking and loss of privacy to these neighbours.  
 

6.14 With regard to the relationship with the donor property, 29 Woodlands Road, 
this would sit above the application site due to the change in ground levels from 
front to rear. There would be a distance of 21m between the two properties. 
Number 29 features rear windows which would look towards the development 
and likely serve habitable rooms. A series of bedroom windows would face 
towards the neighbour’s rear garden area. Whilst some overlooking would 
undoubtedly occur, this would not be an unusual relationship and has been 
deemed acceptable for many backland development schemes in the Borough 
such as this. Given the separation distance and lower level it is not considered 
that the there would be significant harm to the amenity of the donor property.  
 

6.15 Number 27 to the north of the donor property is a large detached building which 
appears to the divided in to flats. Again this property would be sited at a higher 
ground level and the boundary would be well screened by vegetation, the 
existing mature hedge being retained. Whilst some views of the development 
would be afforded from the rear windows of number 27, the separation 
distance, lower ground level and the extensive boundary screening would 
ensure that this is minimal.  
 

6.16 Number 31 Woodlands Road would be to the south of the proposed access. 
The distance between the two elements would be approximately 9.5m although 
it is noted that the neighbouring garage is positioned on the shared boundary. 
Whilst the additional traffic movements may result in some increased noise 
disturbance the sites would be divided by a fence. It should be noted that 
appeal decisions have considered such relationships with new accessways 
acceptable (19/00706/F/AP) and given the small number of proposed dwellings 
there would not be a significant amount of traffic movement throughout the day 
that would be detrimentally harmful to the neighbours’ enjoyment of their 
property.  
 

6.17 In light of the above it is the view that the proposed development, whilst giving 
rise to a degree of change in the relationship between properties, would not be 
sufficiently harmful to the amenity of these properties to warrant refusal, and 
would accord with Policy DES1 in this regard.  

50

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

 
6.18 Objection has been made on the grounds that the development would result 

in a poor outlook and loss of view for neighbouring properties. It is recognised 
that the development would result in change, but it is not considered that this 
would be materially harmful as the proposed dwellings would be a sufficient 
distance away from neighbouring properties to not impact on outlook.  It is 
also the case that a ‘right to a view’ is not a material planning consideration in 
the assessment of a planning application.  
 

6.19 Regarding inconvenience and increased noise and disturbance during 
construction, whilst it is accepted that this can be an issue for residents, it is a 
temporary impact, rather than being capable of a reason for refusal and 
would be mitigated by condition.  
 

6.20 As regards to concern about impact on property values, this is not a material 
planning consideration that can be taken into account. It is not considered 
that the development would give rise to health or crime related issues, which 
would be a matter for Environmental Health and the Police respectively.  
 

6.21 With regard to the development being in conflict with a covenant, this is not a 
material planning consideration that can be taken into account.  
 

6.22 Issues regarding means of drainage would be considered under Building 
Regulations Legislation. The Site is not within an area susceptible to any 
fluvial or surface water flooding but a condition is suggested with regards 
providing appropriate surface water attenuation. 
 
 
Trees and Landscaping  
 

6.23 There are no protected trees within the site however there are a large number 
of trees within the site and along the boundaries. The Councils Tree Officer has 
assessed the application and the submitted arboricultural information, which 
demonstrates that none of the trees to be removed are significant specimens 
and that their removal will not have an impact on the appearance of the local 
landscape. The development will result in the direct loss of a number of trees 
Tree 1, trees T5-T8 and trees T11-T13. The trees are located mainly within the 
central part of the site and are all low category ‘C’ trees, mainly semi mature 
specimens, and no pruning of retained trees is required to facilitate the 
proposed development. This includes trees to the west of the site along the 
railway embankment, the canopies of which would be sufficient distance away 
from the rear of the proposed dwellings that the requirement for further removal 
or pruning is unlikely.  
 

6.24 Two trees to the south boundary (T6 and T7) trees are shown to be removed, 
which at present provide an established screen between the neighbours and 
future occupants. However it is proposed to provide three replacement trees in 
order to maintain sufficient screening and visual enhancement of the site. 
Additional trees would be planted to the front of the dwellings and adjacent to 
the proposed access. In order to secure this the submission of a landscaping 

51

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

scheme prior to commencement of development would be required should 
planning permission be granted.  
 

6.25 The provision of underground services, soakaways and drainage runs have the 
potential to cause significant damage and disturbance to rooting environments, 
though it is normal for the engineering details to be designed post decision. 
The distance between rear elevation of the proposed dwellings and the tree 
protection barriers is 4m and most soakaways are located generally at a 
minimum distance of 5m, which would result in a potential incursion into 
calculated Root Protection Areas (RPAs), for this reason it is advisable to seek 
a finalised Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) and Tree Protection Plan 
(TPP) through condition. There would be sufficient space within the two 
proposed plots to accommodate soakaways for both dwellings a sufficient 
distance away from trees within the site.  

 
Highway Matters 
 

6.26 The site is located within an area of high accessibility as defined within Annex 
4 of the Development Management Plan. The proposal would require 4 parking 
spaces to be provided for future residents, with an additional 2 spaces provided 
for 29 Woodlands. The development proposes 4 spaces in front of the 
dwellings and would therefore comply in this regard. The 2 further spaces 
would be provided adjacent to the access for the donor property.  
 

6.27 The Highway Authority has commented on the proposal and have 
recommended conditions requiring the construction of the proposed access 
road in accordance with the approved plans, the provision of pedestrian inter-
visibility splays, the provision of 6 parking spaces in accordance with the 
approved plans, the submission of a construction transport management plan 
prior to commencement of development, and the installation of electric vehicle 
charging points.  
 

6.28 It is noted that objection has been made, both against the current application 
and previous submissions, with regard to the impact of the proposed 
development on the current on-street parking taking place on Woodlands 
Road, as well as the potential highway safety implications posed by the 
proximity of the application site to 2 bus stops, one on each side of the road. 
The County Highway Authority has deemed this arrangement to be acceptable 
and would not result in a highway safety issue. If there is a bus waiting at either 
bus stop then drivers from the site heading in that direction will have to wait 
behind the bus until it moves, as happens in many locations in the borough. If 
there is no bus then drivers can move freely. The situation regarding the bus 
stop is an existing situation. The access will have adequate sightlines and 
geometry to support the proposed development.  
 

6.29 In order to manage the construction process, a condition requiring the 
submission and approval of a Construction Transport Management Plan would 
be included in any grant of permission.  
 
Ecology 

52

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

 
6.30 This site is not subject to any formal designations with regard to ecology; 

however the site is well landscaped and has the potential to provide suitable 
habitats for a range of species. Policy NHE2 of the Development Management 
Plan advises that throughout the borough, development proposals will be 
expected to:  
 
a. retain and enhance other valued priority habitats and features of biodiversity 
importance; and 
  
b. be designed, wherever possible, to achieve a net gain in biodiversity. Where 
a development will impact on a priority habitat or species, or protected species, 
and mitigation cannot be provided on site in an effective manner, developers 
may be required to offset the loss by contributing to appropriate biodiversity 
projects elsewhere, in a location agreed with the Council. 
 
Preliminary ecology surveys have been submitted in support of the application. 
It is noted that a section of single storey flat roofed extension associated with 
the main house at 29 Woodlands Road will be removed to facilitate access to 
the site. The extension does not appear to have been assessed for its potential 
to host roosting bats. From the information provided the extension does not 
appear to have features typically suitable for bats. However, in the absence of 
ecological survey information it has been recommended that a precautionary 
approach to works is implemented to avoid contravention of protected species 
legislation. S Works affecting the extension should be undertaken carefully and 
by hand. If a bat or evidence of bats is found on site, prior to or during works, 
work should cease immediately and advice sought from Natural England or a 
qualified specialist.  
 

6.31 Works carried out to any trees within the site that have the potential to provided 
roosting habitats for bats would be expected to be carried out in accordance 
with the precautionary working methods as outlined within the submitted 
ecology survey.  
 

6.32 Sensitive lighting will also be kept to a minimum to ensure against the 
disturbance of nocturnal animals. Additional precautionary measures as 
outlined within the ecology survey with regard to the presence of badgers, 
breeding birds and reptiles that may be identified during the course of 
development will be expected to be adhered to.  
 

6.33 The site has the potential to provide habitats for hedgehogs. As well as 
preceding in a precautionary manner so as not to disturb existing habitats, in 
the event of permission being granted, wildlife permeable fencing should be 
incorporated into the scheme. This can be secured as part of a pre-
commencement landscaping condition. 
 

6.34 It is considered that the proposal can achieve biodiversity net gain through new 
landscaping and habitat improvements and conditions are suggested in this 
regard. Subject to development being carried out in accordance with the advice 
contained within the Ecology Survey and informatives recommended by Surrey 

53

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

Wildlife Trust, the proposal is considered to comply with Policy NHE2 of the 
Development Management Plan 2019.  
 
CIL 
 

6.35 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a fixed charge which the Council 
will be collecting from some new developments from 1 April 2016. It will raise 
money to help pay for a wide range of infrastructure including schools, roads, 
public transport and community facilities which are needed to support new 
development. This development would be CIL liable although, the exact 
amount would be determined and collected after the grant of planning 
permission. 

 
 

CONDITIONS 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans:  
 

Plan Type Reference Version Date Received 
Location Plan 2007A / PL 01  19.02.2021 
Other Plan 2007A / PL 10  19.02.2021 
Site Layout Plan 2007A / PL 09  19.02.2021 
Section Plan 2007A / PL 08  19.02.2021 
Elevation Plan 2007A/PL0719.02  19.02.2021 
Elevation Plan 2007A / PL 06  19.02.2021 
Elevation Plan 2007A / PL 05  19.02.2021 
Floor Plan 2007 / PL 04  19.02.2021 
Block Plan 2007 A / PL 02  19.02.2021 
Site Layout Plan 2007A / PL 03  19.02.2021 

 
Reason:  
 
To define the permission and ensure the development is carried out in accord 
with the approved plans and in accordance with National Planning Practice 
Guidance. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
Reason: 
 
To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 

3. Notwithstanding the drawings, the proposed external finishing materials and 
details shall be carried out using the external facing materials and details 
specified below and there shall be no variation without the prior approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority; 
 

54

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

a) The  windows are white vertically sliding sash set back behind the reveal at 
one brck depth with a glazing bar of traditional profile  and painted masonry 
cills. 
b) The roof shall be of dark handmade or handcrafted sandfaced clay plain tile 
with decorative clay ridge tiles to match existing. The tile hanging shall be of 
handmade sandfaced plain clay tiles with two rows of fish scale tiles to every 
row of plain, of light colour to match the Victorian tile hanging and shall be tile 
hang above first floor to the front and the whole of the sides. 
c) All brickwork shall be of dark red handmade sandfaced clay , in Flemish 
bond to the front and sides. 
d) The eternal doors shall be of painted timber. 
e) All fencing shall be vertical close boarded fencing with timber gravel boards 
and posts. 
f)Before any works above ground level details of a bin store at the front 
entrance shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.  
g) All rainwater goods shall be of black painted cast metal or black plastic cast 
iron profile with the gutter fascia of no greater height than the gutter, with white 
painted timber open rafter feet. 
h) Before the new houses are occupied the shortened single side extension to 
the existing house shall be made good to match existing. 
i) The new hedge shall be of privet. 
j) All bargeboards shall be of white painted timber of profile and detail to match 
the front bargeboards on the existing house. 
k)The drive and parking areas shall be of fixed flint pea shingle. 
l) All photovoltaics and solar panels shall either be within the crown of the new 
houses and no higher than the ridge tiles or on the rear plane of the roofs of 
the new houses with black frames in a symmetrical and rectilinear form. 
m) All charging points shall be black finished. 
n) Before any works above ground level a specification for the repair of the 
existing house shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA and 
the repairs shall be carried out before the occupation of the new houses. 
 

 
Reason: To preserve the character and setting of the Locally Listed Building in 
accordance with Policies DES1 and NHE9 of the Development Management 
Plan 2019.  

 
4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, (or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification), no first floor windows, dormer 
windows or rooflights other than those expressly authorised by this permission 
shall be constructed.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the development does not affect the amenity of the 
neighbouring properties by overlooking and to protect the visual amenities of 
the area in accordance with Policy DES1 of Development Management Plan 
2019. 
 

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting 

55

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

that Order with or without modification), no extensions, photovoltaics, solar 
panels, rooflights or dormers permitted by the 2015 Order or its successors, 
shall be constructed (other than those expressly authorised by this permission) 
without an application and approval by the local planning authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development does not affect the amenity of the 
neighbouring properties, and prevent harm to the character and setting of the 
Locally Listed Building, in accordance with Policies DES1 and NHE9 of the 
Development Management Plan 2019.  

 
 

6. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the landscaping 
and replacement tree planting of the site including the retention of existing 
landscape features has been submitted and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. Landscaping schemes shall include details of hard 
landscaping, planting plans, written specifications (including cultivation and 
other operations associated with tree, shrub, and hedge or grass 
establishment), schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities and an implementation programme. 
 
All hard and soft landscaping work shall be completed in full accordance with 
the approved scheme, prior to occupation or use of the approved 
development or in accordance with a programme agreed in writing with the 
local planning authority 
 
All new tree planting shall be positioned in accordance with guidelines and 
advice contained in the current British Standard 5837. Trees in relation to 
construction. 
 
Any trees shrubs or plants planted in accordance with this condition which 
are removed, die or become damaged or become diseased within five years 
of planting shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees, and 
shrubs of the same size and species. 
 
Reason: To ensure good arboricultural and landscape practice in the 
interests of the maintenance of the character and appearance of the area and 
to comply with policies NHE3 and NHE9 of the Reigate and Banstead 
Borough Local Plan 2019, British Standards including BS8545:2014 and 
British Standard 5837:2012 

 
7. No development shall commence including demolition and or  groundworks 

preparation until a detailed, scaled finalised Tree Protection Plan (TPP) and 
the related finalized Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) is  submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). These shall 
include details of the specification and location of exclusion fencing, ground 
protection and any construction activity that may take place within the Root 
Protection Areas of trees (RPA) shown to scale on the TPP, including the 
installation of service routings and location of site offices. The AMS shall also 
include a pre commencement meeting, supervisory regime for their 
implementation & monitoring with an agreed reporting process to the LPA. All 

56

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

works shall be carried out in strict accordance with these details when 
approved.  
 
Reason: To ensure good arboricultural practice in the interests of the 
maintenance of the character and appearance of the area and to comply with 
British Standard 5837:2012 ‘Trees in Relation to Design, demolition and 
Construction – Recommendations’ and reason: To ensure good landscape 
practice in the interests of the maintenance of the character and appearance 
of the area and to comply with policies NHE3, DES1 and DES3 of the 
Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 and the 
recommendations within British Standard 5837:2012 Trees in relation to 
design, demolition and construction.  
 

8. The development shall not be occupied until a plan indicating the positions, 
design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These 
details should include Hedgehog friendly gravel boards where appropriate.  
Details of the 'wildlife friendly' measures should be provided with the 
submission of the details for approval. The boundary treatment shall be 
completed before the occupation of the development hereby permitted.  
 
Reason: To preserve and enhance the visual amenity of the area, protect 
neighbouring residential amenities, and provide access to habitats for wildlife, 
in accordance with Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 
Policies DES1 and NHE3. 

 
9. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until 

an Energy and Water Efficiency Statement has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall detail 
how the development will: 
a) Ensure that the potential water consumption by occupants of each new 

dwelling does not exceed 110 litres per person per day 
b) Achieve not less than a 19% improvement in the Dwelling Emission Rate 

(DER) over the Target Emission Rate (TER) as defined in Part L1A of the 
2013 Building Regulations 

 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
and any measures specific to an individual dwelling(s) shall be implemented, 
installed and operational prior to its occupation. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development supports the efficient use of 
resources and minimises carbon emissions with regard to Policy CS10 of the 
Reigate & Banstead Core Strategy 2014 and Policy CCF1 of the Reigate & 
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019. 
 

10. All dwellings within the development hereby approved shall be provided with 
the necessary infrastructure to facilitate connection to a high speed broadband. 
Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, this shall 
include as a minimum: 

57

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

a) A broadband connection accessed directly from the nearest exchange or 
cabinet 

b) Cabling and associated installations which enable easy access for future 
repair, replacement or upgrading. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development promotes access to, and the 
expansion of, a high quality electronic communications network in accordance 
with Policy INF3 of the Reigate & Banstead Development Management Plan 
2019. 

 
11. No part of the development shall be occupied unless and until the existing 

vehicular access to Woodlands Road has been revised in accordance with 
the approved plan numbered 2007 A PL 02. 
 
Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking, access , and Servicing of the Reigate and 
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019. 

 
12. Prior to The development hereby approved shall not be commenced unless 

and until a pedestrian inter-visibility splay measuring 2m by 2m has been 
provided on each side of the access to Woodlands Road the depth measured 
from the back of the footway (or verge) and the widths outwards from the 
edges of the access in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and 
approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority. No obstruction to 
visibility between 0.6 and 2.0 metres in height above ground level shall be 
erected within the area of such splays. 
 
Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking, access, and Servicing of the Reigate and 
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019. 
 
 

13.  The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and 
until space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved 
plan numbered 2007 A PL02 for a minimum of 6 cars to be parked. 
Thereafter the parking area shall be retained and maintained for its 
designated purpose. 
 
Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking, access, and Servicing of the Reigate and 
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019. 
 

14. No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management 
Plan, to include details of: 

58

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors 
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials 
(c) storage of plant and materials 
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management) 
(e) provision of boundary any hoarding behind visibility zones 
(g) vehicle routing 
(h) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway 
(i) construction hours 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the 
construction of the development. 
 
Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019 and Policy DES8 Construction Management of the Reigate and 
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019. 
 

15. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until 
each of the proposed dwelling(s) are provided with a fast charge socket 
(current minimum requirements - 7 kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 230v 
AC 32 Amp single phase dedicated supply) in accordance with a scheme to 
be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 
thereafter retained and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019 and Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17 (Travel 
Options and Accessibility). 
 

16. Notwithstanding the submitted plan numbered 2007 A PL 02 no part of the 
development shall be occupied unless and until the western end of the refuse 
collection point has been relocated to a point 25 metres from the highway in 
accordance with a revised scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking, access, and Servicing of the Reigate and 
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019. 
 

17. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of the 
design of a surface water drainage scheme has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The design must satisfy the 
SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with the national Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDs, NPPF and Ministerial Statement on SuDs. The required 
drainage details shall include: 

59

Agenda Item 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

 
a) Evidence that there is no risk of contamination through the infiltration SuDs 
b) Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage the 1 in 30 

and 1in 100 (+40% allowance for climate change) storm events and 10% 
allowance for urban creep, during all stages of the development (Pre, Post 
and during), associated discharge rates and storage volumes shall be 
provided using a maximum discharge rate of 37.8l/s. 

c) Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a finalised 
drainage layout detailing the location of drainage elements, pipe diameters, 
levels and long and cross sections of each element including details of any 
flow restrictions and maintenance / risk reducing features (silt traps, 
inspections chambers etc) 

d) Details of how the drainage system will be protected during construction 
and how runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be 
managed before the drainage system is operational 

e) Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes 
for the drainage system 

f) A plan showing exceedance flows (ie during rainfall greater than design 
events or during blockage) and how property on and offsite will be 
protected. This should include details of how surface water run-off entering 
the site from the bunded northern boundary will be intercepted. 
 

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details 
and thereafter maintained. 
 
Reason: To ensure the design meets the technical standards for SuDs and the 
final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site in accordance 
with, Policy CS10 of the Core Strategy 2014, Policies DES9 and CCF2 of the 
Development Management Plan 2019 and the 2019 NPPF. 
 

18. No development shall be commenced until details of biodiversity 
enhancements have been provided, in general accordance with the submitted 
ecology report, to demonstrate how the proposal will achieve biodiversity net 
gain.  
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development maintains habitats and 
biodiversity with regards Policy NHE2 of the Development Management Plan 
2019 and the 2019 NPPF. 

 
19. Development shall proceed following the precautionary approaches and 

mitigation measures as set out in the submitted ecology report. 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development maintains habitats and 
biodiversity with regards Policy NHE2 of the Development Management Plan 
2019 and the 2019 NPPF. 
 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1. Your attention is drawn to the safety benefits of installing sprinkler systems as 

an integral part of new development.  Further information is available at 
www.firesprinklers.org.uk. 

60

Agenda Item 6

http://www.firesprinklers.org.uk/


Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

 
2. The applicant is encouraged to provide renewable technology within the 

development hereby permitted in order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 
Further information can be found on the Council website at : Climate Change 
Information. 

3. The applicant is advised that prior to the initial occupation of any individual 
dwelling hereby permitted, a 140 litre wheeled bin conforming to British 
Standard BSEN840 and a 60 litre recycling box should be provided for the 
exclusive use of the occupants of that dwelling.  Prior to the initial occupation 
of any communal dwellings or flats, wheeled refuse bins conforming to British 
Standard BSEN840, separate recycling bins for paper/card and mixed cans, 
and storage facilities for the bins should be installed by the developer prior to 
the initial occupation of any dwelling hereby permitted.  Further details on the 
required number and specification of wheeled bins and recycling boxes is 
available from the Council’s Neighbourhood Services on 01737 276501 or 
01737 276097, or on the Council’s website at www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk.  
Bins and boxes meeting the specification may be purchased from any 
appropriate source, including the Council’s Neighbourhood Services Unit on 
01737 276775. 

 
4. You are advised that the Council will expect the following measures to be taken 

during any building operations to control noise, pollution and parking: 
(a) Work that is audible beyond the site boundary should only be carried out 

between 08:00hrs to 18:00hrs Monday to Friday, 08:00hrs to 13:00hrs 
Saturday and not at all on Sundays or any Public and/or Bank Holidays; 

(b) The quietest available items of plant and machinery should be used on site.  
Where permanently sited equipment such as generators are necessary, 
they should be enclosed to reduce noise levels; 

(c) Deliveries should only be received within the hours detailed in (a) above; 
(d) Adequate steps should be taken to prevent dust-causing nuisance beyond 

the site boundary.  Such uses include the use of hoses to damp down 
stockpiles of materials, which are likely to generate airborne dust, to damp 
down during stone/slab cutting; and the use of bowsers and wheel washes; 

(e) There should be no burning on site; 
(f) Only minimal security lighting should be used outside the hours stated 

above; and 
(g) Building materials and machinery should not be stored on the highway and 

contractors’ vehicles should be parked with care so as not to cause an 
obstruction or block visibility on the highway. 
Further details of these noise and pollution measures can be obtained from 
the Council’s Environmental Health Services Unit.  
In order to meet these requirements and to promote good neighbourliness, the 
Council recommends that this site is registered with the Considerate Constructors 
Scheme - www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration. 

 
5. The use of landscape/arboricultural consultant is considered essential to 

provide acceptable submissions in respect of the above relevant conditions. 
Replacement planting of trees and shrubs shall be in keeping with the 
character and appearance of the locality. There is an opportunity to incorporate 
substantial sized trees into the scheme to provide for future amenity and long 

61

Agenda Item 6

https://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20065/environmental_sustainability_and_climate_change/119/energy_efficiency_and_renewable_energy_in_development
https://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20065/environmental_sustainability_and_climate_change/119/energy_efficiency_and_renewable_energy_in_development
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/
http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration


Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

term continued structural tree cover in this area. It is expected that the 
replacement structural landscape trees will be of Semi- Extra Heavy Standard 
size with initial planting heights of not less than 4m with girth measurements at 
1m above ground level in excess of 14/16cm. 
 

6. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried 
from the site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned wheels 
or badly loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible, 
to recover any expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing highway 
surfaces and prosecutes persistent offenders. (Highways Act 1980 Sections 
131, 148, 149). 
 

7. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge 
developers for damage caused by excessive weight and movements of 
vehicles to and from a site. The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of any 
excess repairs compared to normal maintenance costs to the  
applicant/organisation responsible for the damage. 
 

8. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out 
any works on the highway or any works that may affect a drainage 
channel/culvert or water course. The applicant is advised that a permit a must 
be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on 
any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the 
highway. All works on the highway will require a permit and an application will 
need to submitted to the County Council's Street Works Team up to 3 months 
in advance of the intended start date, depending on the scale of the works 
proposed and the classification of the road. Please see 
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-
licences/the-traffic-management-permit-scheme. The applicant is also advised 
that Consent may be required under Section 23 of the Land Drainage Act 1991. 
Please see www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-
planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice. 
 

9. It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that the electricity supply is 
sufficient to meet future demands and that any power balancing technology is 
in place if required. Please refer to: 
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-
infrastructure.html for guidance and further information on charging modes and 
connector types. 
 

10. The western end of the refuse ccollection point should be located 25 metres 
from the highway on the grass area west of plot 3 as shown on the plan 
numbered 2007 PL 02 to allow cars to park in front of the existing dwelling. 
 

11. The applicant is advised that development should take place in a precautionary 
manner so as to avoid harm to badgers. Any deep excavations left overnight 
should be provided with a ramped means of escape and stockpiles of soft 
materials shall be covered up overnight to prevent badgers excavating new 
setts.  

 

62

Agenda Item 6

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html


Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 6 
7th July 2021   21/00413/F  

12. The applicant should ensure that the proposed development will result in no 
net increase in external artificial lighting in line with recommendations of the 
Bat Conservation Trusts document entitled ‘Bats and Lighting in the UK – Bats 
and The Built Environment Series’.  
 

REASON FOR PERMISSION 
 
The development hereby permitted has been assessed against the NPPF 2019 and 
Development Management Plan policies DES1 DES2 DES5 DES8 TAP1 NHE2 
NHE3 NHE9 and material considerations, including third party representations.  It has 
been concluded that the development is in accordance with the development plan and 
there are no material considerations that justify refusal in the public interest. 
 
Proactive and Positive Statements  
 
 
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including 
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and 
subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development where possible, as set out within 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 

63

Agenda Item 6



4
2

1

8

3

5

5
0

13

24

3
1

3
4

1
0

1
8

60

3
8

5
6

74

41

72 33

4
2

1
2

35

3a

2
3

14

2a

19

15

2c

4
4

4
6

20

2d

2b

11
SL

2
1

j
2

1e

1
4

a
1

8
c

1
0

a

41
a

1
8

a

The Glen

MP

Corston Hollow

ST JOHN'S ROAD

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D
S

 R
O

A
D

1 
to

 6

86.1m

93.1m
91.0m

1 to 18

1
 t

o
 1

1

Grado

S
 G

an
tr

y

Court

El Sub Sta

Denbury

12

2

41

1
9

1

13

1
4

2

13

2d

11

1
8

d 1
8

b

21.50

S
T

 J
O

H
N

'S
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

 R
O

A
D

1 
to

 6

1 to 15

1 to 12

Silvermere

Woodlands

Sc
ou

t G
ro

up
 H

Q

Ea
rls

w
oo

d

16

M
os

qu
e

SL
15

Scale

21/00413/F - 29 Woodlands Road, Redhill
 

Crown Copyright Reserved.  Reigate and Banstead Borough Council.
Licence No - 100019405-2018

Legend

1:1,250

64

Agenda Item 6



1

2

5
2
7
7
0
0
E

5
2
7
7
5
0
E

5
2
7
8
0
0
E

B
U

S

S
T
O

P

Refuse collection point

Existing hedge

Existing hedge

Fence removed

New hedge No. 29

31

33

27

1

1.8m closeboard fence

1.
8m

 c
lo

se
bo

ar
d 

fe
nc

e

90
0m

m
 h

ig
h 

br
ic

k 
w

al
l (

ex
tg

)

Parking forno. 29

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D
S 

RO
A

D

1.8m closeboard fence

New
tree

2 2

1

1.8m closeboard fence

Existing trees

New trees

N

0 2 4 6 8 10m1

KAA
KA Architectural Ltd

kaa1@email.com

Rev  Date         Description

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning
purposes.

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing No.

2007A / PL 03

Proposed Site Plan

RH1 6EY
Redhill
29 Woodlands Road

Beaufort Homes Ltd

1:200 @ A1

Feb 2021

65

A
genda Item

 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
21j

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
91.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
eave ht.101.5m. ridge ht.104.0m.

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
eave ht.99.5m. ridge ht.102.1m.

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
ridge ht.98.1m.

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
eave ht.95.3 ridge ht.98.0m.

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
macadam

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
200mb/6/6

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
250mb/7/6 hawthorn

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
250/8/8 

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
250/8/8 

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
250/8/8 

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
500mb/10/10 

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
ASH dia.300mm.



1

2

149350N

149450N

5
2
7
7
0
0
E

5
2
7
7
5
0
E

5
2
7
8
0
0
E

5
2
7
8
5
0
E

B
U

S

S
T
O
P

Refuse collection point

Existing hedge

Existing hedge

Fence removed

New hedge No. 29

31

33

27

1

1.8m closeboard fence

1.
8m

 c
lo

se
bo

ar
d 

fe
nc

e

90
0m

m
 h

ig
h 

br
ic

k 
w

al
l (

ex
tg

)

Parking forno. 29

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D
S 

RO
A

D

ST JOHN'S ROAD

1.8m closeboard fence

New
tree

2 2

1

1.8m closeboard fence

Rev  Date         Description

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing No

Do not scale from this drawing, except for
planning purposes.

KAA
KA Architectural Ltd

kaa1@email.com

2007 A / PL 02

Block Plan

RH1 6EY
Redhill
29 Woodlands Road

Beaufort Homes

1:500 @ A3

Feb 2021

0 5 10 15 20 25m

N

66

A
genda Item

 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
21e

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
86.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
21j

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
91.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
eave ht.101.5m. ridge ht.104.0m.

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
eave ht.99.5m. ridge ht.102.1m.

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
ridge ht.98.1m.

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
eave ht.95.3 ridge ht.98.0m.

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
macadam

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
200mb/6/6

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
250mb/7/6 hawthorn

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
250/8/8 

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
250/8/8 

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
250/8/8 

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
500mb/10/10 

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
ASH dia.300mm.



Rev  Date         Description

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing No

Do not scale from this drawing, except for
planning purposes.

KAA
KA Architectural Ltd

kaa1@email.com

2007A  / PL 06

Plot 2 Elevations

RH1 6EY
Redhill
29 Woodlands Road

Beaufort Homes

1:100 @ A3

Feb 2021

0 1 2 3 4 5m

West North

East South

67

A
genda Item

 6



Rev  Date         Description

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing No

Do not scale from this drawing, except for
planning purposes.

KAA
KA Architectural Ltd

kaa1@email.com

2007A  / PL 05

Plot 1 Elevations

RH1 6EY
Redhill
29 Woodlands Road

Beaufort Homes

1:100 @ A3

Feb 2021

0 1 2 3 4 5m

West North

East South

68

A
genda Item

 6



Nos 25-27

No. 29
New houses

Woodlands
Road

Embankment

FFL 91.700

103.00

106.300

98.900

Refused scheme New proposal

Refused scheme

6-8 St John's Road

Boundary
St John's Road

Existing sheds/
ancillary buildings

New proposal

Plot 1 Plot 2
Boundary

Rev  Date         Description

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing No

Do not scale from this drawing, except for
planning purposes.

KAA
KA Architectural Ltd

kaa1@email.com

2007A / PL 08

Site Sections

RH1 6EY
Redhill
29 Woodlands Road

Beaufort Homes

1:200 @ A3

Feb 2021

0 2 4 6 8 10m1

Long Section

Cross Section

69

A
genda Item

 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
CAD-O



Rev  Date         Description

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing No

Do not scale from this drawing, except for
planning purposes.

KAA
KA Architectural Ltd

kaa1@email.com

2007A / PL 07

Perspective View

RH1 6EY
Redhill
29 Woodlands Road

Beaufort Homes

NTS

Feb 2021

A 27.10.20 Gable width amended

70

A
genda Item

 6



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 7th July 2020 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF PLACES & PLANNING 

AUTHOR: Michael Parker 

TELEPHONE: 01737 276339 

EMAIL: Michael.parker@reigate-banstead.gov.uk 

AGENDA ITEM: 7 WARD: Horley Central and South 

 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 21/00501/F VALID: 02/03/2021 
APPLICANT: Abode Homes (Horley) Ltd AGENT: WS Planning & 

Architecture 
LOCATION: MIDDLETON HOUSE, 43 - 49 HIGH STREET, HORLEY, SURREY 

RH6 7BN 
DESCRIPTION: Erection of a three storey rear extension to provide ten flats 

(Revision of 18/01576/F to provide for an additional unit). As 
amended on 06/05/2021, 26/05/2021.  and on 28/05/2021 

All plans in this report have been reproduced, are not to scale, and are for 
illustrative purposes only. The original plans should be viewed/referenced for 
detail. 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The application site consists of 43-49 High Street, a three storey flat roofed building 
in Horley Town Centre. At ground floor level retail units front the High Street and six 
flats are provided at first and second floor levels. The flat-roofed ground floor 
element of the building, accommodating shop space, extends to the rear beyond the 
first and second floors.   
 
This is a full application for the erection of a three-Storey extension to provide 10 
units of accommodation, alongside the partial conversion of the floorspace of No. 43 
High Street for the provision of an internal Bin Store and Bicycle store. As such, the 
proposed development would result in the loss of some floorspace for this retail unit.  
The remaining ground floor units would be unchanged.  The loss of retail space is 
considered acceptable in this instance and is not contrary to policy.  
 
The application follows a previously approved development under 18/01576/F which 
was for the “Erection of a three storey rear extension to provide nine flats.”  This 
permission is still extant and therefore is a significant material consideration when 
assessing the current proposal. 
 
The primary difference between this current proposal and that approved under 
18/01576/F is the provision of a 10th unit, which would be achieved through the 
addition of an additional storey to the existing building. This additional storey would 
in essence be an extension over the existing building from the already approved 

71

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

scheme.  The third floor would be designed as a mansard style roof, which follows 
the design of the neighbouring building Dartel House - 39 -41 High Street & 2 
Lumley Road.  The extent of the rear extension would be reduced in depth when 
compared to the 2018 application – essentially maintaining the existing rear building 
line but it would be wider, extending almost the full width of the existing building.  
The previously approved spiral fire escape would also be replaced by a lightwell with 
a fully enclosed stairwell now proposed further to the rear of the extension. 
 
The proposed extension is considered to be of a design and scale that would 
respect the scale and appearance of the existing buildings and those within the 
locality. The scale and location of the development is such that no adverse harm is 
considered to occur to the amenity of neighbouring properties, particularly when 
considering the proposal against the extant scheme. With regards to the units 
themselves, these are considered to be of an adequate size and would afford an 
acceptable level of outlook and day light provision. 
 
The proposed development does underprovide in terms of car parking when 
considered against the Council’s adopted parking standards but when taking in to 
account the town centre location of the application and the positive comments from 
Surrey County Council it is considered that the under provision is acceptable in this 
case. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Planning permission is GRANTED subject to conditions. 

 

72

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

Consultations: 
 
Conservation Officer: recommended some minor changes to roof form, see below 
design section for further details. 
 
Environmental Protection Officer: recommends a contaminated land informative 
 
Highway Authority:  The County Highway Authority has assessed the application on 
safety, capacity and policy grounds and is satisfied that the application would not 
have a material impact on the safety and operation of the adjoining public highway 
with respect of access, net additional traffic generation and parking. The County 
Highway Authority therefore has no highway requirements subject to conditions.    
 
Horley Town Council: No objections. 
 
Surrey County Council Lead Local Flood Authority: Has reviewed the surface water 
drainage strategy for the proposed development and assessed it against the 
requirements of the NPPF, its accompanying PPG and the Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for sustainable drainage systems. 
 
The following documents submitted as part of the above application have been 
reviewed and should be referred to as part of any future submissions or discharge of 
planning conditions: 
• Drainage Strategy, Patrick Parsons, March 2021, revision 1.0, document 
reference: A21039; 
 
State that they are satisfied that the proposed drainage scheme meets the 
requirements set out in the aforementioned documents and are content with the 
development proposed, subject to the imposition of conditions requiring the 
submission of a detailed drainage scheme and a verification report. 
 
Surrey Police – Request that a  condition be imposed for require Secured by Design 
accreditation for the development.   
 
Representations: 
 
One neighbour representation has been received raising the following issue: 
 
Unreasonable inconvenience to existing occupant – due to the rear access being 
changed it will not be possible to move piano in or out of property for profession. 
 
 
1.0 Site and Character Appraisal 
 
1.1 The application site comprises of 43-49 High Street, which is a three storey 

flat roofed building in Horley Town Centre. At ground floor level retail units 
front the High Street and six flats are provided at first and second floor level, 
three per floor. The ground floor retail units extend to the rear beyond the 
upper levels of the building and have flat roofs. To the rear of the building is a 
parking area, which is accessed from Lumley Road.  

73

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

1.2 The surrounding area is characterised by a mix of retail development, which 
is generally located at ground floor level with flats or offices above. The 
adjoining units to the west 39-41 High Street and 2 Lumley Road (Dartel 
House) - extends beyond the rear of the application site and is four storeys in 
height.  Immediately adjacent to the east is the Gatwick Islamic Centre, Old 
College 51-53 High Street – which is a locally listed building.  There are 
residential dwellings relatively close in Lumley Road and Yattendon Road. 

 
2.0 Added Value 
 
2.1 Improvements secured during the course of the application: The mansard 

roof was amended so that it sloped away from the Old College Locally Listed 
Building.  Further plans were provided in relation to bin and bike storage and 
the car parking layout for servicing.  Amended sightlines plans has also been 
submitted. 

 
2.3 Further improvements could be secured: Conditions will be applied regarding 

materials to ensure the extension integrates sufficiently with the existing. Also 
conditions recommended regarding drainage, parking and highways and 
water/energy efficiency. 

 
 
3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History 
              
3.1 11/00423/F Renewal of the previously granted 

application 08/00130/F: demolition 
of buildings fronting 43-49 High 
Street and erection of 3 to 4 storey 
building comprising of retail, office 
and 11 x 2 bed & 8 x 1 bed 
residential units (total of 19 units). 

Granted 25 
November 2011 

    
3.2 15/00552/P3JPA Change of use of the office space 

(Class B1a) to residential use as 6 
self-contained apartments (Class 
C3) - Prior approval not required  - 
14 April 2015.  
Note: this relates to flats Nos 1 - 6. 
 

Prior Approval Not 
Required 14 April 

2015 

3.3 15/02148/PAP3O Change of use from offices to form 8 
apartments at First & Second Floors 
39 -41 High Street & 2 Lumley Road 

24 November 2015 

    
3.3 16/00276/F Erection of third floor roof extension, 

39-41 High Street & 2 Lumley Road. 
Granted 31 May 

2016 
    
3.4  16/01758/F               Erection of rear first and second 

floor                
 Granted 24 

January 2017 
         

3.5 18/01576/F Erection of a three storey rear Granted 21 

74

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

extension to provide nine flats. As 
amended on 04/10/2018 and on 
09/11/2018. 

December 2018 

    
4.0 Proposal and Design Approach 
 
4.1 This is a full application for the erection of a three storey rear extension to 

provide ten flats alongside the partial conversion of the floorspace of No. 43 
High St for the provision of an internal Bin Store and Bicycle store. As such, 
the proposed development would result in the loss of some floorspace for this 
retail unit. The remaining ground floor units would be unchanged. 
 

4.2 This proposal follows on from the approval of a previous scheme, under the 
application reference 18/01576/F which was for the Erection of a three storey 
rear extension to provide nine flats.  
 

4.3 The primary difference between this current proposal and that approved 
under 18/01576/F is the provision of a 10th unit, which would be achieved 
through the addition of an additional storey to the existing building. This 
additional storey would in essence be an extension over the existing building 
from the already approved scheme.  The third floor would be designed as a 
mansard style roof, which follows the design of the neighbouring building 
Dartel House - 39 -41 High Street & 2 Lumley Road.  The extent of the rear 
extension would be reduced when compared to the 2018 application – 
essentially maintaining the existing rear building line.  The previously 
approved spiral fire escape would also be replaced by a lightwell with a fully 
enclosed stairwell now proposed further to the rear of the extension.  

 
4.4 A design and access statement should illustrate the process that has led to 

the development proposal, and justify the proposal in a structured way, by 
demonstrating the steps taken to appraise the context of the proposed 
development.  It expects applicants to follow a four-stage design process 
comprising: 

 Assessment; 
 Involvement; 
 Evaluation; and 
 Design. 
 
4.5 Evidence of the applicant’s design approach is set out below: 
 

Assessment The surrounding area is considered to be characterised 
by a mix of retail development, which is generally located 
at ground floor level with flats or offices above.  The site 
context is considered including the relevant planning 
policies and planning history 

Involvement No community consultation took place. 
Evaluation The statement does not include any evidence of other 

development options being considered.  But 
consideration is given to the already approved scheme 

75

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

and how they compare 
Design The applicant’s reasons for choosing the proposal are to 

provide units in line with space standards, to improve the 
design of the rear stair core by replacing the external fire 
staircase with stair core and lightwell.  A mansard roof 
design is chosen to match in with the existing 3rd floor at 
Dartel House.  

 
 
4.6 Further details of the development are as follows: 
 

Site area 0.5ha 
Existing use Retail and residential 
Proposed use Retail and residential 
Existing parking spaces 13 
Proposed parking spaces 13 
Parking standard 19  
Number of affordable units 0 
Net increase in dwellings 10 
Net retail floorspace 
 
Existing site density 
Proposed site density 

-51.3 (loss of part of 1 retail unit to 
allow space for bike and bin storage) 
12 dph 
32 dph cumulative total of 15 flats 

 
 
5.0 Policy Context 
 
5.1 Designation 
 

Urban area 
Horley Town Centre 
Primary Shopping area 
Primary Shopping Frontage  
Parking Standards Score – 11 (High Accessibility) 

 
5.2      Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy (CS) 
           
           CS1(Sustainable Development) 
 CS4 (Valued townscapes and the historic environment) 

76

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

           CS5 (Valued People/Economic Development),  
           CS7 (Town/Local Centres),  
           CS10 (Sustainable Development),  
           CS11 (Sustainable Construction),  
           CS14 (Housing Needs)  
           CS17 (Travel Options and accessibility) 
 
5.3      Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 (DMP) 
 

RET1 (Development within identified retail frontages and local centre) 
RET2 (Town centre frontages) 
DES1 (Design of new development) 
DES4 (Housing mix) 
DES5 (Delivering high quality homes ) 
DES8 (Construction Management) 
TAP1 (Access, Parking and Servicing) 
CCF1 (Climate Change Mitigation) 
INF3 (Electronic communication networks) 
NHE9 (Heritage Assets) 

 
5.4 Other Material Considerations 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance 
(NPPG) 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance Surrey Design 
Local Distinctiveness Design Guide 
Vehicle and Cycle Parking 
Guidance 2018 
Affordable Housing 

Other Human Rights Act 1998 
 Community Infrastructure Levy 

Regulations 2010 

                                       
6.0 Assessment 

 
6.1 The application site is within the urban area, where there is a presumption in 

favour of sustainable development and where the principle of residential 
development is acceptable.  
 

6.2 Policy RET1 relates specifically to development within identified retail 
frontages and RET2 relates specifically to sites within Town Centre sand 
Primary shopping areas.  Whilst there is a net loss of retail space, this is only 
part of one of the existing retail units and does not affect the retail frontage 
and does not result in the complete loss of the retail unit. The use of the 
ground floor of the building would therefore remain in retail use and would 

77

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

retain the existing active frontage.  Part 2 of policy RET1 offers 
encouragement to the provision of a range of uses, including residential flats 
to upper floors.    
 

6.3 There is therefore no objection in principle to the development of the site and 
such a proposal would help the Council meet some of the Borough's 
identified housing need and furthermore would be welcomed as a contribution 
to housing supply.   

 
6.4 The main issues to consider are: 
 

• Design appraisal 
• Housing Mix and Standard of Accommodation   
• Neighbour amenity 
• Highway matters 
• Energy, Sustainability and Broadband 
• Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
Design appraisal 
 

6.5 DMP Policy DES1 relates to the Design of New Development and requires 
new development to be of a high quality design that makes a positive 
contribution to the character and appearance of its surroundings.  New 
development should promote and reinforce local distinctiveness and should 
respect the character of the surrounding area.  The policy states that new 
development will be expected to use high quality materials, landscaping and 
building detailing and have due regard to the layout, density, plot sizes, 
building siting, scale, massing, height, and roofscapes of the surrounding 
area, the relationship to neighbouring buildings, and important views into and 
out of the site.  
 

6.6 Policy NHE9 relates to heritage assets.  Policy NHE9 1. states that 
“Development will be required to protect, preserve, and wherever possible 
enhance, the Borough’s designated and non-designated heritage assets and 
historic environment including special features, area character or settings of 
statutory and locally listed buildings.”  Policy NHE9 5. States:  “In considering 
proposals that directly or indirectly affect other non-designated heritage 
assets, the Council will give weight to the conservation of the asset and will 
take a balanced judgement having regard to the extent of harm or loss and 
the significance of the asset.” 
 

6.7 In terms of the height and scale of the proposal this would be very similar 
when compared to the extant 2018 scheme in terms of overall height and 
depth.  The rear extension would in fact be shallower in depth compared to 
the extant scheme.  The additional third floor development which extends 
above the existing second floor (3rd storey) and across the entire width of the 
building would result in a wider and more visible development, particularly 
from the High Street side and views from the south of the site. However, the 
design which uses a mansard roof design, would match in much more 
comfortably with the existing third floor at Dartel House than the extant 2018 

78

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

permission and therefore the additional built form would read as a 
continuation of Dartel House and would not appear incongruous within the 
streetscene.  Particularly as the mansard roof now angles away from the 
smaller scale The Old College building ensuring it does not appear prominent 
against this locally listed building. 
 

6.8 The rear elevation would include a fully enclosed rear stairwell which would 
add some additional bulk when compared to the extant 2018 permission and 
results in the extension extending past the adjoining building Dartell House at 
the second and third floor levels.  However, this would not be by a significant 
amount and would be no further than the depth considered acceptable under 
the 2018 permission.  The fully enclosed stairwell also results in the removal 
of the external spiral staircase previously proposed under the extant scheme.  
The overall design of the rear elevation is considered to be acceptable with it 
following the staggered form of the existing rear elevation and with a reduced 
bulk compared to the extant scheme. 
 

6.9 The materials are proposed to match that of the existing building with the 
exception of the roof material which is proposed to match as closely as 
possible the material of Dartel House.  Such an approach is considered 
acceptable and would ensure that the development fits in well with the 
character of the existing building and surrounding built form. 
 

6.10 With regards to the potential impact on the adjacent locally listed building the 
Conservation Officer advised that: “the design continues the existing 
mansard, which is quite a heavy and over fenestrated design. The side 
elevation facing the locally listed building needs the roof form to continue 
round the side to reduce the scale rather than a high masonry wall.”  As set 
out above amended plans were received during the application which show 
the angled mansard roof design following around the side reducing the scale 
of the third floor.  The change in the mansard roof design and the gap 
between the two buildings would ensure that the proposal would not cause 
unacceptable harm to the setting of the locally listed building. 
 

6.11 The proposal includes the provision of a bin and cycle store which is 
integrated in to the ground floor.  This prevents the need for any external 
structures within the rear parking area and is an improvement on the extant 
scheme. 
 

6.12 The proposed development is considered to be of an acceptable design and 
scale which would respect the character, density and scale of the surrounding 
area and would not have a materially harmful impact on the setting of the 
non-designated heritage access.   As such, the proposal would comply with 
policies DES1 and NHE9 of the Development Management Plan 2019. 
 

 Housing Mix and Standard of Accommodation 
 

6.13 For Town Centre applications Policy DES4 requires that on “on all schemes, 
at least half of all homes provided should be one and two bedroom homes.” 
 

79

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

6.14 The submitted plans shows a total of 10 flats to be used for market housing in 
a mix of 4 x 1 bed, 5 x 2 bed and 1 x 3 bed.  This accords with the 
requirements of DMP Policy DES4.   

 
6.15 Policy DES5 requires that all new residential development must provide high 

quality adaptable accommodation and provide good living conditions for 
future occupants. New accommodation must meet the relevant nationally 
prescribed internal space standard for each individual unit unless the council 
considers that an exception should be made. Sufficient space must be 
included for storage, clothes drying and the provision of waste and recycling 
bins in the home.  Adequate outdoor amenity space including balconies and 
terraces and /or communal outdoor space should be provided. 

 
6.16 The drawings submitted illustrate that each flat proposed would accord with 

the appropriate space standard and each unit is provided with sufficient 
storage space.  Outdoor amenity space is not included. However, this is not 
uncommon for residential flats within a town centre location. It is also noted 
that the site is well located with regards to access to public open spaces.  The 
flats would be single aspect only, however they would all have adequate 
outlook and the windows would provide adequate light throughout the flats.  
The proposals would therefore comply with the requirements of DMP Policy 
DES5.   
 

6.17 Policy DES1 6. Requires development to create a “safe environment, 
incorporating measures to reduce opportunities for crime and maximising 
opportunities for natural surveillance of public places. Developments should 
incorporate measures and principles recommended by Secured by Design”.  
 

6.18 The application makes reference to providing a new entryway that would be 
in keeping with the objectives of “Secure by Design”.  There is no further 
information on how this would be done or whether further secured by design 
aspects would be incorporated.  Surrey Police has requested that a condition 
is included which ensures that the proposal incorporates Secured by Design 
measures.  A condition is therefore recommended to secure these measures 
before occupation. 

 
Neighbour amenity 

 
6.19 In addition to the comments noted above DMP Policy DES1 also requires 

new development to provide an appropriate environment for future occupants 
whilst not adversely impacting upon the amenity of occupants of existing 
nearby buildings, including by way of overbearing, obtrusiveness, 
overshadowing, overlooking and loss of privacy. 
 

6.20 To the north-west of the site is 8 Lumley Road, which is believed to be a 
guest house.  Due to the distance away from the proposed units it is not 
considered that there would be an adverse impact on the occupants of this 
building.  Similarly, the proposal would result in no adverse impact to 
occupants of dwellings to the west of Lumley Road or 1A Yattendon Road. 
 

80

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

6.21 The application site adjoins number 41 High Street/2 Lumley Road (Dartel 
House) and is immediately adjacent to 51-53 High Street (Gatwick Islamic 
Centre), and 1 Yattendon Road.  Further consideration is required (below) 
regarding the impact on the amenity of these properties. 
 

6.22 The proposal would extend beyond number 41/Dartel House by 
approximately 4.8 metres.  Whilst this is a sizable amount it is important to 
note that this is the same as the depth of extant scheme at the ground and 
first floor level,  which was considered to be an acceptable relationship. The 
current proposal would result in built form at this depth at both the second 
and third floor level as well.  However, this impact would be no worse than the 
impact on the first floor units and due to the angling away of the proposed 
rear section, the fact it is to the north-east and the fact that the first three rear 
facing windows all serve the same flat on each floor of Dartel House it is 
considered that this depth would not result in an unacceptable loss of light to 
the rear facing rooms or result in an unacceptable overbearing impact to 
these rooms.   
 

6.23 The closest flats at Dartel House also have side facing windows – one is 
understood to be a secondary window to the kitchen/living rooms.  The 
second is understood to be the primary window to a bedroom.  These 
windows are proposed to be enclosed by the proposed extension with a 
lightwell introduced to provide natural light.  This is different from the extant 
2018 scheme where the main part of the extension was set away at 2nd floor 
and above but where a fire escape spiral staircase was proposed immediately 
next to the side facing windows of Dartel House all the way up to the third 
floor.   Therefore, whilst the fully enclosed lightwell would result in some 
reduced outlook for the adjacent occupants at the second and third floor of 
Dartel House when compared to the extant scheme the removal of the fire 
escape spiral staircase would represent an improvement in terms of 
immediate outlook and overbearing impact.  The lightwell is not considered to 
result in significantly less light to these side facing windows than the extant 
2018 scheme given the removal of the spiral staircase and the height of the 
extant permission.  Taking all the above factors in to account and given the 
town centre context of the site, it is considered that the proposal would not 
result in such adverse loss of light and overbearing impact to these windows 
that it warrants refusal. 
 

6.24 The only windows which would face towards the side windows of Dartel 
House are those which face the lightwell.  The majority of these windows 
serve the corridors.  Therefore, to prevent any loss of privacy it is 
recommended to include a condition which ensures these windows are 
obscure glazed and restricted opening.  
 

6.25 Concerns were also raised under the 2018 application with regard to the 
impact of the external spiral stairwell on noise and disturbance. The rear 
stairwell would now serve as a secondary access to the flats, including 
access to the bike and bin stores and parking.  However, it is considered that 
the fully enclosed nature of the stairwell and adjoining corridors would ensure 
that there is no adverse impact on the adjacent occupants at Dartel House. 

81

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

 
6.26 The proposed extension would also extend beyond the Gatwick Islamic 

Centre. This building has an office use at ground floor level and a community 
use above. Although some loss of light may occur to this property, it would 
not be materially harmful so as to be contrary to policy.  The impact would 
also be less than the extant 2018 scheme which is deeper.  There would be 
one side facing bedroom window at 1st, 2nd and 3rd floor level but the location 
in relation to the rear of the Islamic Centre building would prevent direct 
overlooking.  Again this scheme is an improvement to the extant 2018 
scheme where two side facing windows were proposed at each floor.  
 

6.27 Adjacent to the site, 1 Yattendon Road has been converted into five self-
contained flats. Although the proposal would extend the boundary with 
number 1, the separation distance between the proposed extension and the 
existing building is such that no adverse harm would occur by way of loss of 
light or overbearing impact. Although there is one proposed side facing 
window on the 1st, 2nd and 3rd floor (to serve a bedroom) which would face 
number 1, the separation distance is such that no mutual overlooking is 
considered to occur between the properties.  It is of note that the extant 
scheme proposed two windows on each of the floor so this would be an 
improvement to the extant scheme in terms of potential overlooking. 

 
6.28 The proposal would not result in any material harm to the occupants of the 

existing flats at Middleton House due to their layout which has all windows 
facing out towards the high street.  It is noted that one objection has been 
received regarding the impact the proposal would have on one of the 
occupants of Middleton House due to the rear access. Where it will not be 
possible to move a piano in or out of property for profession. Whilst this 
inconvenience is noted policy DES1 of the DMP does not cover such 
personal matters and such a reason does not justify the refusal of this 
application on amenity grounds. 
 

6.29 As a result, it is considered that the proposals would not have an 
unacceptable impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties and would 
accord with the provisions of DMP Policy DES1 in this regard. 
 
Highway matters 
 

6.30 Policy TAP1 of the Development Management Plan 2019 requires new 
development to demonstrate that it would not adversely affect highways 
safety or the free flow of traffic, that it would provide sufficient off-street 
parking in accordance with published standards and that it would constitute 
development in a sustainable location 
 

6.31 In terms of the access following amended plans which now propose a kerb 
build out to improve sight lines Surrey County Council County Highways 
Authority (CHA) has advised that the “the proposed kerb build out will provide 
improved sight lines that will support the proposed development, this footway 
widening will be subject to a Section 278 Agreement under the highways Act 
1980.”  Therefore, subject to conditions to secure the improved sightlines the 

82

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

proposal is considered acceptable with regard to highway safety and 
capacity.  

 
6.32 In terms of parking taking in to account the existing 6 flats at this location the 

proposal would require a total 19 car parking spaces and 16 cycle spaces for 
the residential development.  The scheme would provide 16 cycle spaces but 
only 13 car parking spaces are provided under this application. 
 

6.33 Policy TAP1 states that  all types of development should include car parking 
and cycle storage for residential and non-residential development in 
accordance with adopted local standards (see Annex 4) unless satisfactory 
evidence is provided to demonstrate that non-compliance would not result in 
unacceptable harm. Such evidence could include on-street parking surveys, 
evidence of parking demand, and/ or further information on accessibility. 
Development should not result in unacceptable levels of on-street parking 
demand in existing or new streets.  Annex 4, under the Residential Standards 
Section p.174, does state that “The standards are provided as a guide and 
they may be varied at the discretion of the Council to take into account 
specific local circumstances” and that “A lower amount of parking may be 
appropriate in areas within, or adjacent to town centres.” 
 

6.34 In support of the application a Transport Statement which considers the issue 
of accessibility under its ‘Sustainable Transport’ Section which found: 
 
• The site is within walking distance (up to 800m) of 2 x supermarkets, 3 x 

schools, 1 x medical centre, 1 x post officer, 1x pharmacy and 1 x bank.  
The is therefore well served by local facilities. 

• The nearest bus stop is only 300m away (on Victoria Road) and is served 
by 5 routes. 

• Horley train station is 500m walk from the site. Horley train station It is 
located on the Brighton Mainline and services are provided by Thameslink 
and Southern. Typical peak weeday services include 2 trains per hour 
(tph) to Peterborough; 2 tph to Bedford; 2 tph to Gatwick Airport; and 2 tph 
to Horsham. 

• The National Cycle Route 21 (that links London to Eastbourne) is located 
near to the site 
 

6.35 No evidence has been provided in the form of on-street parking surveys, or 
evidence of parking demand.  However, the information on  the accessibility 
of the site is compelling and demonstrates that the site benefits from good 
access to public transport facilities, and to a good range of shops and 
services.  The application has been reviewed by the CHA who has comments 
that “The development is in a sustainable location being with an area of high 
accessibility according to the Reigate and Banstead Development 
Management Plan 2019 interactive map, with access to sustainable modes of 
transport such as walking, cycling and public transport routes all with walking 
distance of the site- therefore future occupants of the site do not have to be 
fully reliant on car use. There are parking controls in the High Street and 
Lumley Road and in surrounding roads that would prevent any overspill 
parking from the site taking place in locations where it is considered 

83

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

dangerous. Therefore, subject to the above conditions being included within 
any permission granted, the CHA has no objection to the proposed 
development.” 
 

6.36 Therefore, the CHA do not believe that the proposals would lead to 
unacceptable harm or unacceptable levels of demand for on-street parking 
due to the parking restrictions in the surrounding area.  It is also important to 
note that the extant 2018 scheme was found to be acceptable with only 
proposed 13 car parking spaces and this scheme is only for one more 
residential unit.  On this basis, no objections are raised with regards to the 
under provision of parking on the site.  Conditions are recommended to 
secure the provision of the agreed car and cycle parking provision.  
   

6.37 In terms of refuse and servicing.  The Transport Statement advises that the 
refuse and servicing arrangements will continue in line with similar 
arrangements for the existing property.  A refuse bin store is proposed that 
has the correct capacity for 16 flats and which is located in a position close to 
the edge of the site and in a better position that the refuse store proposed 
under the extant 2018 permission.  Neighbourhood Services has been 
consulted but has not commented.  In terms of servicing for the existing retail 
units the applicant has provided a servicing plan which shows that it is 
possible for a 7.5 ton vehicle to enter and exit the site in forward gear whilst 
another delivery vehicle is parked.  The CHA has raised no objection 
regarding both the refuse and servicing proposals.  It is also important to note 
that the extant 2018 scheme does not provide space for delivery vehicles to 
enter and exit the site.  On that basis this aspect of the scheme is considered 
acceptable.  Conditions are recommended to secure the installation of the 
refuse area prior to occupation. 
 

6.38 A Travel Plan document was submitted with the application but Surrey 
County Council has not recommended a condition to secure implementation 
of such a plan.  Given the scale of the development and the supportive 
comments of the CHA it is not considered reasonable or necessary to 
condition the need for a Travel Plan.  

 
Energy, Sustainability and Broadband  
 

6.39 DMP Policy CCF1 relates to climate change mitigation and requires new 
development to meet the national water efficiency standard of 
110litres/person/day and to achieve not less than a 19% improvement in the 
Dwelling Emission Rate (DER) over the Target Emission Rate (TER) as 
defined in Part L1A of the 2013 Building Regulations.  No evidence has been 
submitted to demonstrate that that the proposed development can achieve 
either of the two requirements.  However, in the event that planning 
permission is to be granted, a condition could be imposed to seek such 
information and its implementation prior to the first occupation of 
development. Car charging points are also recommended to be secured by 
planning condition to provide appropriate facilities for electric cars. In this 
regard, there would be no conflict with DMP Policy CCF1. 
 

84

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

6.40 A condition is also recommended to ensure that each dwelling is fitted with 
access to fast broadband services.   
 
Drainage 
 

6.41 In support of the application,  a surface water drainage strategy has been 
submitted and has been assessed by Surrey County Council Sustainable 
Drainage team as the Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) against the 
requirements of the NPPF, its accompanying PPG and the Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for sustainable drainage systems. They state that they 
are satisfied that the proposed drainage scheme meets the requirements set 
out in the aforementioned documents and are content with the development 
proposed, subject to the imposition of conditions requiring the submission of a 
detailed drainage scheme and a verification report. 

 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 
6.42 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a fixed charge which the Council 

will be collecting from some new developments from 1 April 2016. It will raise 
money to help pay for a wide range of infrastructure including schools, road, 
public transport and community facilities which are needed to support new 
development. This development would be CIL liable and the exact amount 
would be determined and collected after the grant of any planning 
permission. 
 

 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans:  
 
Plan Type    Reference   Version  Date 

 Location Plan   J003825-DD-01    02.03.2021 
Block Plan    J003825-DD-02    02.03.2021 
Site Layout Plan   J003825-DD-03    02.03.2021 
Floor Plan    J003825-DD-04    02.03.2021 
Floor Plan    J003825-DD-05    02.03.2021 
Floor Plan    J003825-DD-06    02.03.2021 
Roof Plan    J003825-DD-07   02.03.2021 
Elevation Plan   J003825-DD-08    02.03.2021 
Elevation Plan   J003825-DD-09    02.03.2021 
Elevation Plan   J003825-DD-10   02.03.2021 

85

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

Elevation Plan   J003825-DD-11    02.03.2021 
Street Scene   J003825-DD-12    02.03.2021 
Floor Plan    J003825-DD-15  A   02.03.2021 
Floor Plan    J003825-DD-16  A   02.03.2021 
Elevation Plan   J003825-DD-23  A   02.03.2021 
Elevation Plan   J003825-DD-25  A   02.03.2021 
Site Layout Plan   J003825-DD-26    06.05.2021 
Floor Plan    J003825-DD-17  B   26.05.2021 
Site Layout Plan   A21039/0101  P1   26.05.2021 
Block Plan    J003825-DD-13  B   26.05.2021 
Floor Plan    J003825-DD-18  B  26.05.2021 
Elevation Plan   J003825-DD-20  B   26.05.2021 
Elevation Plan   J003825-DD-21  B   26.05.2021 
Roof Plan    J003825-DD-19  B  26.05.2021 
Elevation Plan   J003825-DD-22  B   26.05.2021 
Site Layout Plan   J003825-DD-27    26.05.2021 
Site Layout Plan   J003825-DD-14  B   26.05.2021 
Street Scene   J003825-DD-24 B   26.05.2021 
Floor Plan    J003825-DD-28    26.05.2021  
Site Layout Plan   A21039/0100 P3    24.06.2021 
 
Reason: To define the permission and ensure the development is carried out 
in accord with the approved plans and in accordance with National Planning 
Practice Guidance. 
 

3. No development shall commence until a Construction Management 
Statement, to include details of: 
a)  Prediction of potential impacts with regard to water, waste, noise and 
vibration, dust, emissions and odours, wildlife. Where potential impacts are 
identified, mitigation measures should be identified to address these impacts. 
b)  Information about the measures that will be used to protect privacy and 
the amenity of surrounding sensitive uses; including provision of appropriate 
boundary protection. 
c)  Means of communication and liaison with neighbouring residents and 
businesses. 
d)  Hours of work. 
Has been submitted to and improved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Only the approved details shall be implemented during the 
construction of the development. 
 
Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development is 
managed in a safe and considerate manner to help mitigate potential impact 
on the amenity and safety of neighbours and to accord with policy DES8 of 
the Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019. 
 

4. The development hereby permitted shall be completed in full accordance with 
the materials/details as listed below unless otherwise agreed in writing.   
- No external roofing material shall be laid/installed until details of the 

specific material and finish to be used for the external roof has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

86

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

Mansard Roof shall match as closely as possible materials of Dartel 
House. Only the agreed roofing material shall be used.   

- The external wall and windows shall match the materials and finish of the 
existing building. 

 
Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the details 
of the proposal and its relationship with adjoining development and to 
safeguard the visual amenities of the locality with regard to Reigate and 
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 policy DES1. 

 
5. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of the 

design of a surface water drainage scheme have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority. The design must satisfy the 
SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with the national Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial Statement on SuDS. The required 
drainage details shall include:  
 
a) Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage the 1 in 

30 & 1 in 100 + 40% (allowance for climate change) storm events, during 
all stages of the development. The final solution should follow the 
principles set out in the approved drainage strategy. Associated discharge 
rates and storage volumes shall be provided using a maximum discharge 
rate of 1.1 l/s.  

b) Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a finalised 
drainage layout detailing the location of drainage elements, pipe 
diameters, levels, and long and cross sections of each element including 
details of any flow restrictions and maintenance/risk reducing features (silt 
traps, inspection chambers etc.).  

c) A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design 
events or during blockage) and how property on and off site will be 
protected from increased flood risk.  

d) Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance 
regimes or the drainage system.  

e) Details of how the drainage system will be protected during construction 
and how runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be 
managed before the drainage system is operational.  

 
Reason: To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood 
risk on or off site.  

 
6. Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried 

out by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority. This must demonstrate that the surface water 
drainage system has been constructed as per the agreed scheme (or detail 
any minor variations), provide the details of any management company and 
state the national grid reference of any key drainage elements (surface water 
attenuation devices/areas, flow restriction devices and outfalls), and confirm 
any defects have been rectified.  
 

87

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

Reason: To ensure the Drainage System is constructed to the National Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS. 
 

7. No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management 
Plan, to include details of: 
(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors 
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials 
(c) storage of plant and materials 
(d) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway 
(e) construction hours 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the 
construction of the development. 
 
Reason: in order that the development should not prejudice highway safety, 
nor cause inconvenience to other highway users, and to accord with the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and Policy TAP1 Parking, access, 
and Servicing and DES8 Construction Management of the Reigate and 
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019 and 
Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17. 
 

8. The refuse store shown on the approved plans, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing, shall be erected and made ready for use (i.e. bins installed) prior to 
the first occupation of the development.  
 
Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the details 
of the proposal and its relationship with adjoining development and to 
safeguard the visual amenities of the locality with regard to Reigate and 
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 policy DES1. 

 
9. No part of the development shall be first occupied unless and until the 

existing vehicular access to Lumley Road has been provided with sight lines 
2.0 metres by 43 metres in both directions and the footway along the Lumley 
Road site frontage has been widened all in accordance with the approved 
plan numbered A21039/0100 Rev P3. 
 
Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019 and Policy TAP1 Access, Parking, and Servicing of the Reigate and 
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019. 
 

10. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until 
space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans 
for vehicles to be parked. Thereafter the parking and turning areas shall be 
retained and maintained for their designated purposes. 
 
Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and to accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 

88

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

2019 and Policy TAP1 Access, Parking, and Servicing of the Reigate and 
Banstead Local Plan Development Management Plan September 2019. 
 

11. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until 
space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans 
for cycles to be parked in a covered and secure location. Thereafter the cycle 
parking area shall be retained and maintained for its designated purpose. 
 
Reason: In order that the development promotes more sustainable forms of 
transport, and to  accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 
and Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17. 

 
12. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until a 

minimum of 3 of the available parking spaces are provided with a fast charge 
socket (current minimum requirement: 7kw Mode 3 with Type 2 connector - 
230 v AC 32 amp single phase dedicated supply) and a further 3 are provided 
with an electric supply to fit EV charging in the future in accordance with a 
scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
Reason: In order that the development promotes more sustainable forms of 
transport, and to  accord with the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 
and Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy 2014 Policy CS17. 

 
13. The development shall not be occupied until a scheme demonstrating 

compliance with the principles of 'Secured by Design' has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details 
shall be completed before the occupation of the development hereby 
permitted and shall be permanently maintained as such thereafter.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the development provides a secure environment for 
future residents in accordance  with Policy DES1 of the Reigate & Banstead 
Development Management Plan 2019. 
 

14. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until 
an Energy and Water Efficiency Statement has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall 
detail how the development will: 
a) Ensure that the potential water consumption by occupants of each new 

dwelling does not exceed 110 litres per person per day 
b) Achieve not less than a 19% improvement in the Dwelling Emission Rate 

(DER) over the Target Emission Rate (TER) as defined in Part L1A of the 
2013 Building Regulations 

 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
and any measures specific to an individual dwelling(s) shall be implemented, 
installed and operational prior to its occupation. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development supports the efficient use of 
resources and minimises carbon emissions with regard to Policy CS10 of the 

89

Agenda Item 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

Reigate & Banstead Core Strategy 2014 and Policy CCF1 of the Reigate & 
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019. 

 
15. All units within the development hereby approved shall be provided with the 

necessary infrastructure to facilitate connection to a high speed broadband. 
Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, this 
shall include as a minimum: 
a) A broadband connection accessed directly from the nearest exchange or 

cabinet 
b) Cabling and associated installations which enable easy access for future 

repair, replacement or upgrading. 
 

Reason: To ensure that the development promotes access to, and the 
expansion of, a high quality electronic communications network in 
accordance with Policy INF3 of the Reigate & Banstead Development 
Management Plan 2019. 
 

16. The first, second and third floor windows which serve the Lightwell of the 
development hereby permitted shall be glazed with obscured glass and shall 
be non-opening unless the parts of the window which can be opened are 
more than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is 
installed, and shall be maintained as such at all times. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development does not affect the amenity of the 
neighbouring property by overlooking with regard to Reigate and Banstead 
Development Management Plan 2019 policy DES1. 

 
 

INFORMATIVES 
 
1. Your attention is drawn to the safety benefits of installing sprinkler systems as 

an integral part of new development.  Further information is available at 
www.firesprinklers.org.uk. 

2. The applicant is encouraged to provide renewable technology within the 
development hereby permitted in order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 
Further information can be found on the Council website at : Climate Change 
Information. 

 
3. The applicant site is situated on or in close proximity to land that could be 

potentially contaminated by virtue of previous historical uses of the land.  As 
a result there is the potential for a degree of ground contamination to be 
present beneath part(s) of the site.  Groundworkers should be made aware of 
this so suitable mitigation measures and personal protective equipment 
measures (if required) are put in place and used.  Should significant ground 
contamination be identified the Local Planning Authority should be contacted 
promptly for further guidance. 

 
4. The applicant is advised that prior to the initial occupation of any individual 

dwelling hereby permitted, to contact the Council’s Neighbourhood Services 

90

Agenda Item 7

http://www.firesprinklers.org.uk/
https://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20065/environmental_sustainability_and_climate_change/119/energy_efficiency_and_renewable_energy_in_development
https://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20065/environmental_sustainability_and_climate_change/119/energy_efficiency_and_renewable_energy_in_development


Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

team to confirm the number and specification of recycling and refuse bins that 
are required to be supplied by the developer. The Council’s Neighbourhood 
Services team can be contacted on 01737 276292 or via the Council’s 
website at http://www.reigate-
banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling_and_waste_
developers_guidance 

 
5. The applicant is advised that the Borough Council is the street naming and 

numbering authority and you will need to apply for addresses. This can be 
done by contacting the Address and Gazetteer Officer prior to construction 
commencing. You will need to complete the relevant application form and 
upload supporting documents such as site and floor layout plans in order that 
official street naming and numbering can be allocated as appropriate. If no 
application is received the Council has the authority to allocate an address. 
This also applies to replacement dwellings. If you are building a scheme of 
more than 5 units please also supply a CAD file (back saved to 2010) of the 
development based on OS Grid References. Full details of how to apply for 
addresses can be found 
http://www.reigatebanstead.gov.uk/info/20277/street_naming_and_numbering 
 

6. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out 
any works on the highway or any works that may affect a drainage 
channel/culvert or water course. The applicant is advised that a permit and, 
potentially, a Section 278 agreement must be obtained from the Highway 
Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath, 
carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. All works on the 
highway will require a permit and an application will need to submitted to the 
County Council's Street Works Team up to 3 months in advance of the 
intended start date, depending on the scale of the works proposed and the 
classification of the road. Please see http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-
transport/road-permits-and-licences/the-traffic-management-permit-scheme. 
The applicant is also advised that Consent may be required under Section 23 
of the Land Drainage Act 1991. Please see www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-
community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice. 
 

7. The developer is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway 
works required by the above conditions, the County Highway Authority may 
require necessary accommodation works to street lights, road signs, road 
markings, highway drainage, surface covers, street trees, highway verges, 
highway surfaces, surface edge restraints and any other street 
furniture/equipment.  
 

8. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried 
from the site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned wheels 
or badly loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible, 
to recover any expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing highway 
surfaces and prosecutes persistent offenders. (Highways Act 1980 Sections 
131, 148, 149).  
 

91

Agenda Item 7

http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling_and_waste_developers_guidance
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling_and_waste_developers_guidance
http://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20085/planning_applications/147/recycling_and_waste_developers_guidance
http://www.reigatebanstead.gov.uk/info/20277/street_naming_and_numberin


Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 7 
7th July 2021  21/00501/F  

9. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge 
developers for damage  caused by excessive weight and movements of 
vehicles to and from a site. The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of any 
excess repairs compared to normal maintenance costs to the 
applicant/organisation responsible for the damage. 
 

10. It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that the electricity supply is 
sufficient to  meet future demands and that any power balancing technology is 
in place if required. Please refer to: 
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-
infrastructure.html for guidance and further information on charging modes 
and connector types. 
 
 

 
REASON FOR PERMISSION 
 
The development hereby permitted has been assessed against development plan 
policies CS1, CS4, CS5, CS7, CS10, CS11, CS14, CS17 and RET1, RET2, DES1, 
DES4, DES5, DES8, TAP1, CCF1, INF3, NHE9 and material considerations, 
including third party representations.  It has been concluded that the development is 
in accordance with the development plan and there are no material considerations 
that justify refusal in the public interest. 
 
Proactive and Positive Statements  
 
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including 
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and 
subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development where possible, as set out within 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

92

Agenda Item 7

http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html
http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-infrastructure.html


HORLEY

7

1

5

4

2

9

6

8

FB

Diana W
alk

20

10

22

18

1a

15

29

17

41

19

13

38

12

4023

24

36

46

42

5439

11

56.1m

56.0m

56.6m

56.7m

56.8m

56.5m

El

Ban
k

LB

10
a

Works

D
ef

Car Park

44
b

Subway

HIG
H S

TREET

The Quadrangle

LU
M

LE
Y

 R
O

A
D

STA
TIO

N R
OAD

YA
TTEN

D
O

N
 R

O
A

D

TCB

C
O

N
S

O
R

T
 W

A
Y

 E
A

S
T

6 
to

 8

1 to 9

New
S

TA
T

IO
N

 A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

1 to 12

1 to 75

Geller

House

51
 to

 5
3

MP 25.5

Court

E
D

 B
d

y

Tribbiana

M
ontreal

Belm
ont

Talgarth

Hallin
gton

Lidcombe

The Laurels

Sunnyside

Elbourne House

Russetts

Ross Court

19

D
ef

1

24

2

6

13

1

2

22

11

PH

ST G
EORGES C

LOSE

1 to 16

1 
to

 1
2

Sub Sta

St Lawrence

Court

Chandler

C
ottages

Ju
bile

e C
ourt

Eversley

CREW
DSON R

OAD

25

Court

10 1 to 12

House

Scale

21/00501/F - Middleton House, 43 - 49 High Street,
Horley

Crown Copyright Reserved.  Reigate and Banstead Borough Council.
Licence No - 100019405-2018

Legend

1:1,250

93

Agenda Item 7



1a
1

LB

8

39
2

54

51 to
 53

41

2
LUM

LEY ROAD

HIG
H STREET

YATTEN
D

O
N

 R
O

AD

10

No. 43

Teapoint

WC

Bicycle Store

Bin Store

utility
 services plant

cupboard

landing
0.94

6

5

1

13
ground floor

entrance 0.00

UP

UP

No. 45

No. 47

No. 49Com
m

on Staircore

F

Land-

lord's

Cpd

Outlin
e of P

lanning Perm
issi

on 18
/01

57
6/F

Bancroft Road,
Reigate
Surrey. RH2 7RP

Europe House

Rev   Date           Description

Drawn By

Checked

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing. No.

T. 01737 225711
F. 01737 226311
www.wspa.co.uk

Rev.

11.05.2021 CJ

1:200@A2 LB

Abode Homes (Horley) Ltd.

Middleton House
High Street, Horley 
RH6 7BN

As Proposed
Site Plan

J003825-DD-14 B

W

S

As Proposed Site Plan

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.
Refer to Structural Engineers details for all structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20m

SCALE 1:200

A 25.02.21 Client Review

B 11.05.21 Highways Parking Amendments

94

A
genda Item

 7



1
a

1 to 75

1

Elbourne House

2

9

8

Subway

The Quadrangle

56.6m

4

6

5
4

2

L

U

M

L

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

H

I

G

H

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

Y
A

T
T

E
N

D
O

N
 
R

O
A

D

1

0

Footbridge

2.0m X 43m Sightline

2.0m X 43m Sightline

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

p

a

r

k

i

n

g

 

b

a

y

s

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

p

a

r

k

i

n

g

 

b

a

y

s

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

p

a

r

k

i

n

g

 

b

a

y

s

Widen footway to

2.1m wide

Maintain minimum 3.7m wide road

width through existing narrowing

Existing Cycle Lane

Limit of widening

Limit of widening

Revisions

A1

At original size

GENERAL NOTES

E.  info@patrickparsons.co.uk

W. www.patrickparsons.co.uk

United Kingdom

Guildford

Satelliet house, 2 Nexus Park

Lysons Avenue, Ash Vale

GU12 5QE

T.  +44 (0)1276 700 400

REV.

DRW BY
CCK BY APP BY

DATE DATE DATE

REVISION NOTE/COMMENT

1.1.  THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT AND SHOULD NOT BE

REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT THE 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PPCE GROUP LTD.

1.2 DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

1.3.  ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE AND

CO-ORDINATE WITH RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S 

DRAWINGS. ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED

TO THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

1.4.  ALL DIMENSIONS IN METRES UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE.

1.5.  ALL LEVELS IN METRES.

1.6.  SIZES HEREON SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED WITHOUT

THE WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER.

1.7.  THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH

ALL RELEVANT ENGINEERS DRAWINGS &

SPECIFICATIONS.

Status

Drawing No.

Drawn

Date

Scales

Checked

Client

Drawing

Project

Rev.

Abode Homes

43-49 High Street

Horley

Sightline Plan with Kerb Build-out

1:200

CV

April 2021

DB

A21039/0100 P3

P1 INITIAL ISSUE.

CV 29.04.21 DB 29.04.21 DB 29.04.21

P2 FOOTWAY 1.8M WIDE

CV 25.05.21 DB 25.05.21 DB 25.05.21

P3 FOOTWAY  WIDENNED

CV 17.06.21 DB 17.06.21 DB 17.06.21

95

A
genda Item

 7



8

L

U

M

L

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

H

I

G

H

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

1

0

Space for delivery vehicle

E

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

 

p

a

r

k

i

n

g

 

b

a

y

s

7.5 ton vehicle turning

Revisions

A1

At original size

GENERAL NOTES

E.  info@patrickparsons.co.uk

W. www.patrickparsons.co.uk

United Kingdom

Guildford

Satelliet house, 2 Nexus Park

Lysons Avenue, Ash Vale

GU12 5QE

T.  +44 (0)1276 700 400

REV.

DRW BY
CCK BY APP BY

DATE DATE DATE

REVISION NOTE/COMMENT

1.1.  THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT AND SHOULD NOT BE

REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR PART WITHOUT THE 

WRITTEN CONSENT OF PPCE GROUP LTD.

1.2 DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

1.3.  ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE AND

CO-ORDINATE WITH RELEVANT ARCHITECT'S 

DRAWINGS. ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE REPORTED

TO THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

1.4.  ALL DIMENSIONS IN METRES UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE.

1.5.  ALL LEVELS IN METRES.

1.6.  SIZES HEREON SHALL NOT BE MODIFIED WITHOUT

THE WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER.

1.7.  THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH

ALL RELEVANT ENGINEERS DRAWINGS &

SPECIFICATIONS.

Status

Drawing No.

Drawn

Date

Scales

Checked

Client

Drawing

Project

Rev.

INFORMATION 

Abode Homes

43-49 High Street

Horley

Servicing Plan

1:200

CV

May 2021

DB

A21039/0101 P1

P1 INITIAL ISSUE.

CV 11.05.21 DB 11.05.21 DB 11.05.21

96

A
genda Item

 7



4 cycles
2xSheffield Standsallow 500mm e/s

Bin Store

C
om

m
on Staircore

Land-
lord's
Cpd

66
0l 

Eu
ro

bi
n

11
00

l E
ur

ob
in

11
00

l E
ur

ob
in

360l eurobin

360l eurobin

360l eurobin

360l eurobin

360l eurobin

2x1100l eurobin1x660l eurobin5x360l eurobin

Rev  Date           Description

Drawn By

Checked

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing. No.

T. 01737 225711
F. 01737 226311
www.wspa.co.uk

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.

Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

Bancroft Road,
Reigate
Surrey. RH2 7RP

Europe House

Rev.

11.05.2021 CJ

LB1:25@A3

Abode Homes (Horley) Ltd.

Middleton House
High Street, Horley
RH6 7BN

As Proposed
Bin Storage Layout

J003825-DD-27SCALE 1:25

10005000 1500 2000 2500mm

As Proposed Bin Storage Layout

97

A
genda Item

 7



4 cycles
2xSheffield Standsallow 500mm e/s

Teapoint
WC

Bicycle Store
14 Cycles

Land-
lord's
Cpd

10 cycles
10xSemi Vertical
rack @ 305c/c 75

0

500

60
0

Rev  Date           Description

Drawn By

Checked

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing. No.

T. 01737 225711
F. 01737 226311
www.wspa.co.uk

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.

Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

Bancroft Road,
Reigate
Surrey. RH2 7RP

Europe House

Rev.

30.04.2021 CJ

LB1:25@A3

Abode Homes (Horley) Ltd.

Middleton House
High Street, Horley
RH6 7BN

As Proposed
Bicycle Storage Layout

J003825-DD-26SCALE 1:25

10005000 1500 2000 2500mm

As Proposed Bicycle Storage Layout

98

A
genda Item

 7



Rev  Date           Description

Drawn By

Checked

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing. No.

T. 01737 225711
F. 01737 226311
www.wspa.co.uk

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.

Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

Bancroft Road,
Reigate
Surrey. RH2 7RP

Europe House

Rev.

11.05.2021 CJ

LB1:200@A3

Abode Homes (Horley) Ltd.

Middleton House
High Street, Horley
RH6 7BN

As Proposed
Street Scene Elevations

J003825-DD-24 B

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20m

SCALE 1:200As Proposed Street Scenes

A 25.02.21 Client Review

B 11.05.21 Mansard Roof/Dormer Window

99

A
genda Item

 7



Rev  Date           Description

Drawn By

Checked

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing. No.

T. 01737 225711
F. 01737 226311
www.wspa.co.uk

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.

Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

Bancroft Road,
Reigate
Surrey. RH2 7RP

Europe House

Rev.

25.02.2021 CJ

LB1:100@A3

Abode Homes (Horley) Ltd.

Middleton House, 
High Street, Horley
RH6 7BN

As Proposed
Flank Elevation 
South West

J003825-DD-23 ASCALE 1:100

10m9876543210

As Proposed Flank (South West) Elevation

A 25.02.21 Client Review

100

A
genda Item

 7



Rev  Date           Description

Drawn By

Checked

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing. No.

T. 01737 225711
F. 01737 226311
www.wspa.co.uk

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.

Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

Bancroft Road,
Reigate
Surrey. RH2 7RP

Europe House

Rev.

25.02.2021 CJ

LB1:100@A3

Abode Homes (Horley) Ltd.

Middleton House, 
High Street, Horley
RH6 7BN

As Proposed
Flank Elevation 
North East

J003825-DD-22 BSCALE 1:100

10m9876543210

As Proposed Flank (North East) Elevation

A 25.02.21 Client Review

B 11.05.21 Mansard Roof/Dormer Window

101

A
genda Item

 7



Rev  Date           Description

Drawn By

Checked

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing. No.

T. 01737 225711
F. 01737 226311
www.wspa.co.uk

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.

Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

Bancroft Road,
Reigate
Surrey. RH2 7RP

Europe House

Rev.

11.05.21 CJ

LB1:100@A3

Abode Homes (Horley) Ltd.

Middleton House, 
High Street, Horley
RH6 7BN

As Proposed
Rear Elevation

J003825-DD-21 BSCALE 1:100

10m9876543210

As Proposed Rear Elevation

A 25.02.21 Client Review

A 11.05.21 Mansard Roof/Dormer Window

102

A
genda Item

 7



Rev  Date           Description

Drawn By

Checked

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing. No.

T. 01737 225711
F. 01737 226311
www.wspa.co.uk

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.

Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

Bancroft Road,
Reigate
Surrey. RH2 7RP

Europe House

Rev.

11.05.21 CJ

LB1:100@A3

Abode Homes (Horley) Ltd.

Middleton House, 
High Street, Horley
RH6 7BN

As Proposed
Front Elevation

J003825-DD-20 BSCALE 1:100

10m9876543210

As Proposed Front Elevation

A 25.02.21 Client Review

B 11.05.21 Mansard Roof/Dormer Window

103

A
genda Item

 7



Rev  Date           Description

Drawn By

Checked

Date

Client

Project

Scale

Title

Drawing. No.

T. 01737 225711
F. 01737 226311
www.wspa.co.uk

Do not scale from this drawing, except for planning purposes.
Any discrepancies are to be reported to WS Planning & Architecture.

Refer to Structural Engineers details for structural design criteria.
This drawing remains the copyright of WS Planning & Architecture.

Bancroft Road,
Reigate
Surrey. RH2 7RP

Europe House

Rev.

25.02.2021 CJ

LB1:100@A3

Abode Homes (Horley) Ltd.

Middleton House
High Street, Horley
RH6 7BN

As Proposed
Lightwell Elevations

J003825-DD-25 ASCALE 1:100

10m9876543210

As Proposed Lightwell Elevations

A 25.02.21 Client Review

104

A
genda Item

 7



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE: 07 July 2021 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF PLANNING 

AUTHOR: Matthew Lambert  

TELEPHONE: 01737 276659 

EMAIL: matthew.lambert@reigate-
banstead.gov.uk 

AGENDA ITEM: 8 WARD: Reigate 

 
APPLICATION 
NUMBER: 

a) 21/00373/HHOLD 
b) 21/00374/LBC 

VALID: 05/03/2021 

APPLICANT: Mrs Cat Hoad AGENT: None 
LOCATION: 29 WEST STREET, REIGATE, RH2 9BL 
DESCRIPTION: Demolition of existing modern wooden conservatory at the rear 

of the property and replacement with part-single and part-two 
storey extensions 

All plans in this report have been reproduced, are not to scale, and are for 
illustrative purposes only. The original plans should be viewed/referenced for 
detail. 

 
This application is referred to Committee by Councillor Whinney  
 
SUMMARY 
 
This is a householder planning application and listed building consent for a proposal 
to extend a grade II Listed building at ground and first floor levels to the rear of the 
property. The original building is a sixteenth century timber framed residential 
dwelling. It has been extended firstly in the 1930s with an “outrigger” addition, which 
rises two storeys to part of the width of the dwelling. A glazed conservatory was then 
added following this. It lies within the Reigate Town Centre Conservation Area, on 
the southern side of West Street.  
 
The proposal seeks permission for the removal of the conservatory, and 
replacement with a single storey rear extension in largely the same area on the site 
but extending deeper. The 1930s outrigger would then be extended at first floor 
level. In terms of dimensions, the ground floor extension would measure 3.50m in 
height, 5.95m in depth, and 4.05m in width. The first-floor extension would measure 
3.50m in depth, 4.05m in width, and would lie a maximum of 7.81m above ground 
level, in line with the height of the existing 1930s projection. In terms of materials, it 
is proposed to finish the extension in reclaimed brick (ground floor) and handmade 
clay tiles (second floor and roof), although conditions relating to materials are 
suggested as recommended by the Council’s Conservation Officer.  
 

105

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 
The application follows a previous refusal on the site for a larger extension, refused 
on grounds of harm to the listed building, conservation area and amenities of 
neighbouring properties. Amendments secured following that scheme and during the 
course of this application are considered to overcome such concerns such that the 
proposal is now deemed acceptable in these and all other regards.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Planning permission is GRANTED subject to conditions. 
 

 

106

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 
Consultations: 
 
Conservation Officer: The proposal is acceptable from a conservation viewpoint 
subject to conditions 
 
Archaeological Officer: Although the site is within an area identified as being of High 
Archaeological Potential, the area of new disturbance will be relatively small in scale 
and will have been disturbed previously to some extent, so I have no archaeological 
concerns in this case.   
 
Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings: Object to the proposal on the basis 
that the design, massing and overall appearance of the additions would be 
inappropriate in the context of the listed building and would cause unacceptable 
levels of harm to the special interest of the heritage asset.  
 
Historic England – Do not wish to provide any comments in respect of the proposal 
 
Ancient Monument Society – Provided no comments in respect of the proposal  
 
The Georgian Group - Provided no comments in respect of the proposal 
 
The Victorian Society - Provided no comments in respect of the proposal 
 
Council For British Archaeology - Provided no comments in respect of the proposal 
 
The Twentieth Century Society - Provided no comments in respect of the proposal 
 
Reigate Businsss Guild - Provided no comments in respect of the proposal 
 
The Reigate Society – Objects to the proposal for the following reasons –  
 

• The society agree with objections made, summarised in the “representations” 
section 

• The single storey rear extension would result in loss of light to neighbours 
• The two-storey extension is too deep, bulky, and overbearing to both 

neighbouring plots and is not in keeping with and is harmful to the original 
building 

• The cross-gable end extension roof is particularly overbearing and will cause 
loss of light 

• The rear elevation can be seen from the Priory Cricket Club 
• The detail of the architectural design is poor 

 
 
Representations: 
 
Letters were sent to neighbouring properties on 08 March 2021, and 18 May 2021, 
following the submission of revised plans.  
 
A site notice in respect of the application was displayed on 01 April 2021. 
 

107

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 
A press notice was advertised on 18 March 2021.  
 
Sixty representations were received across the two applications, sixteen in favour of 
the proposal, forty-four objecting. The following issues were raised –  
 
Issue Response 
Harm to Conservation Area See paragraph 6.2 – 6.7 
Harm to Green Belt/Countryside See paragraph 6.17 
Harm to Listed Building  See paragraph 6.2 – 6.7 
Inadequate Parking See paragraph 6.18 
Inconvenience During Construction See paragraph 6.19 
Layout Position and Density  See paragraph 6.2 – 6.7 
Loss of private view See paragraph 6.8 – 6.15 
No need for the development  See paragraph 6 
Noise & Disturbance See paragraph 6.19 
Out of character with surrounding 
area 

See paragraph 6.2 – 6.7 

Overbearing relationship See paragraph 6.8 – 6.15 
Overshadowing See paragraph 6.8 – 6.15 
Overdevelopment See paragraph 6.8 – 6.15 
Overlooking and loss of privacy See paragraph 6.8 – 6.15 
Poor design/architectural drawings See paragraph 6.2 – 6.7 
Property devaluation This is not a material planning 

consideration 
 
The following points were made in support of the application  
 
Benefit to housing need 
Community/regeneration benefit 
The proposal would be sensitive to the building 
The proposal would increase the levels of privacy enjoyed by the site 
 
 
1.0 Site and Character Appraisal 
 
1.1 The site is occupied by a two-storey sixteenth century timber framed grade II 

listed building. It features a 1930s extension, and a glazed conservatory 
added following this.  
 

1.2 It is situated within the urban area, also within the Reigate Town Centre 
conservation area. The site level is relatively flat. No significant trees would 
be harmed as a result of the proposal. 

108

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 
 
2.0 Added Value 
 
2.1 Improvements secured at the pre-application stage: Pre-application advice 

mostly took the form of discussion of the previous refusal application. Points 
raised from this discussion were then incorporated into the proposal currently 
under consideration. 

 
2.2 Improvements secured during the course of the application: Amended plans 

reducing the width and height of the ground floor extension were requested 
and received during the course of the application  

 
2.3 Further improvements to be secured through conditions or legal agreement: 

Conservation officer conditions 
 
 
3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History 
              
3.1 79P/0312 Alterations to provide WC on 

ground floor   
Granted 
12.07.1979 

    
3.2 91/09760/LBC Erection of rear conservatory 

extension 
Granted 25.01.1991 
 

    
3.3 19/02525/LBC Removal of the current two-storey 

rear extension and modern 
conservatory to the rear of the 
property and replace it with a more 
functional two-story extension   

Application withdrawn  

 
3.4 

 
19/02524/HHOLD  

 
Removal of the current two-storey 
rear extension and modern 
conservatory to the rear of the 
property and replace it with a more 
functional two-story extension   

 
Application withdrawn 

 
3.5 

 
20/01714/HHOLD 

 
Demolition of existing rear two-
storey extension and conservatory 
and replacement with new part-two 
storey, part-single-storey rear 
extension, internal alterations and 
renovation, new front ground-floor 
windows, new front door within 
existing opening, new rear patio 
and fence to west boundary  

 
Refused 23/10/2020 

 
3.6 

 
20/01715/LBC  

 
Demolition of existing rear two-
storey extension and conservatory 
and replacement with new part-two 
storey, part-single-storey rear 

 
Refused 23/10/2020 

109

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

extension, internal alterations and 
renovation, new front ground-floor 
windows, new front door within 
existing opening, new rear patio 
and fence to west boundary - 

 
3.7 

 
20/02299/LBC 

 
To re-open the second existing 
opening on the front of the house 
(currently boarded up with timber) 
and re-instate a front door, and to 
replace the existing damaged front 
door in situ with a new door. To 
remove the paint from the ground 
floor of the front of the house in 
order to re-point and to perform 
brickwork repair as necessary. 
Paint is to be removed using 
chemical poultice process and any 
pointing to be brushed finished and 
set behind the arises with all 
pointing done in lime mortar.  

 
Granted 12/01/2021. 

 
4.0 Proposal and Design Approach 
 
4.1 This is a householder planning application and listed building consent for a 

proposal to extend the building at ground and first floor level to the rear.  
 
4.2 A design and access statement has been submitted as part of the proposal. It 

should illustrate the process that has led to the development proposal, and 
justify the proposal in a structured way, by demonstrating the steps taken to 
appraise the context of the proposed development.  It expects applicants to 
follow a four-stage design process comprising: 

 Assessment; 
 Involvement; 
 Evaluation; and 
 Design. 
 
4.3 Evidence of the applicant’s design approach is set out below: 
 

Assessment The existing property is a three-bedroom one bathroom 
home with a small kitchen and a large rear garden. 
Much of the property originates from the 16th century and 
over the subsequent hundreds of years was adapted 
from being one large hall to having a number of small 
rooms across two living floors and a roof space. At the 
rear of the property is a 2m wide Victorian extension 
which houses the bathroom upstairs and downstairs 
leads to a modern wooden frame conservatory. 

110

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

Involvement Community views were not sought by the applicants. Pre-
application advice was sought and provided by the 
council prior to the submission of the application.  

Evaluation No other development options were considered by the 
applicants. 

Design The applicant’s reasons for choosing the proposal from 
the available options were based around restoration of 
privacy, sympathetic design approach, and positive 
environmental impact.   

 
5.0 Policy Context 
 
5.1 Designation 
 
 Urban Area 
 
5.2      Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy  
           
           CS1(Sustainable Development) 
 CS4 (Valued Townscapes and the Historic Environment) 
           CS10 (Sustainable Development),  
           CS11 (Sustainable Construction),  
 
5.3      Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 
 

DES1: Design of New development 
NHE9: Heritage assets 

 
5.4 Other Material Considerations 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
National Planning Practice Guidance 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance Surrey Design 
Local Distinctiveness Design Guide, 
Reigate & Banstead Borough 
Council Local Character & 
Distinctiveness Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Document 
(Draft for consultation November 
2020), Householder Extensions and 
Alterations SPG (2004) 

Other Human Rights Act 1998 
 Community Infrastructure Levy                            

Regulations 2010 
                                                                             
6.0 Assessment 
 

111

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 
6.1 The main issues to consider are: 
 

• Design appraisal / Impact upon the Listed Building and Conservation 
Area 

• Neighbour amenity 
• Community Infrastructure Levy 
 

 
Design appraisal / Impact upon the Listed Building and Conservation Area 

 
6.2 The proposal seeks to carry out works to a Listed Building. The National 

Planning Policy Framework requires local planning authorities to have regard 
to any impact that a proposal may have on the character and setting of an 
identified heritage asset. As such the particular significance of the heritage 
assets in question needs to be assessed. Great weight should be afforded to 
the asset’s conservation and the more important the heritage asset the 
greater that weight should be. Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of 
these heritage assets would require clear justification to be made. Harm to 
Grade II listed buildings should be exceptional. Within the local policy 
framework, Policy CS4 of the Core Strategy requires development to be 
designed sensitively to respect, conserve, and enhance the historic 
environment, including heritage and their settings. Policy NHE9 of the 
Council’s Development Management Plan states that development will be 
required to protect, preserve, and wherever possible enhance, the Borough’s 
designated and non-designated heritage assets and historic environment 
including special features, area character or settings of statutory and locally 
listed buildings. 
 

6.3 DMP Policy DES1 relates to the Design of New Development and requires 
new development to be of a high-quality design that makes a positive 
contribution to the character and appearance of its surroundings.  New 
development should promote and reinforce local distinctiveness and should 
respect the character of the surrounding area.  The policy states that new 
development will be expected to use high quality materials, landscaping and 
building detailing and have due regard to the layout, density, plot sizes, 
building siting, scale, massing, height, and roofscapes of the surrounding 
area, the relationship to neighbouring buildings, and important views into and 
out of the site.   
 

6.4 The proposal is considered acceptable with regards to design and character. 
In terms of the ground floor; the existing conservatory, whilst adjoining the 
listed building is of low amenity value and does not particularly contribute to 
the appearance of the dwelling. The replacement ground floor rear extension, 
following an excavation of 0.50m would reach a maximum height of 3.50m. Its 
eaves level would therefore be the same as the conservatory and owing to 
the proposed flat roof, the proposed maximum height would be lower. The 
width would be 4.05m, in line with that of the conservatory. Amended plans 
were requested and received during the course of the application, reducing 
the width in order that the historic core of the listed building retain its present 
level of visibility from the rear. Following the updated plans, the extension is 

112

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

considered to respect and conserve the core of the Grade II listed building; its 
overall impact is not seen to be above and beyond that of the impact of the 
conservatory. 
 

6.5 In terms of depth, it would be approximately 2.3m deeper than the existing 
conservatory. An extension of this depth is considered appropriate given the 
plot size within which the dwelling is set. There is an incline in gradient to the 
south. The existing views when observed from the Cricket Club would 
therefore be largely unchanged. Furthermore, a condition has been 
recommended to ensure that the area between the extension and Cricket 
Club is landscaped, to further preserve the views to the rear. 
 

6.6 The Conservation Officer has observed that the depth and span of the ground 
floor extension is no greater than the extension to the Blue Anchor Pub, at 27 
West Street. He observes that no.27 appears to be part of the same building 
as no.29, in terms of the timber frame structure, and is therefore relevant to 
the acceptability of this addition. He also noted, as has been noted in the 
section above that that the extension; following revised plans, is set away 
from the historic core of the house. Taking the above into consideration, 
subject to the conditions recommended below, the ground floor element of 
the scheme would accord with the provisions of policies CS4, DES1 and 
NHE9 of the council’s Core Strategy 2014 and Development Management 
Plan 2019 Respectively.  
 

6.7 Turning to the first-floor extension, internally, the existing bathroom would be 
relocated to the front of the house, and a principle bedroom would be formed 
to the rear. Externally, the asymmetrical gable would be altered to instate 
symmetry, when viewed from the rear. A further north-south hipped extension 
would connect to the eastern side of the gable. In terms of dimensions, it 
would measure 3.50m in additional depth, 4.05m in width, and would lie a 
maximum of 7.81m above ground level. This is a height no higher than the 
existing maximum height of the Victorian addition.  
 

6.8 The Conservation Officer notes with regards to the first floor that it would 
appear subservient to the form of the main house. It would help reduce the 
eaves line on the east side back to the level of the original house, which as 
described above, are currently asymmetrical. He considers the vernacular 
form to be in keeping with the listed building. He also notes that whilst the 
extension is deep, similar additions to Grade II Listed buildings are to be 
found on this side of West Street. The first-floor extension subject to 
conditions is therefore considered appropriate given the context of the 
building, its plot, and the immediate surrounding locality and conservation 
area. Crucially both extensions are also moved away from the original timber 
framed rear façade so as not to obscure this elevation. 

 
Neighbour amenity 

 
6.9  Both the Householder Extension and Alteration SPG in addition to Policy 

DES1 of the Development Management Plan expects any proposal to have 
due regard to the amenity of neighbouring properties. Concerns have been 

113

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

raised during the consultation period citing harm to neighbouring properties 
as a reason for objection, including overshadowing and loss of light, 
overlooking, loss of privacy and loss of a private view.  

 
6.10 The Council’s Householder Extensions and Alterations SPG provides 

guidance on extension depths in the case of single storey rear extensions, 
where the existing residential dwelling is a mid-terrace property. The 
guidance suggests a depth of 3.0 metres whereas the proposed extension 
would be around 5.3 metres deep. 
 

6.11 It is noted that sitting adjacent to the extension is the Blue Anchor Public 
House at no.27, which features a rear extension to a similar depth. However, 
this does not lie astride the boundary; as the proposal would initially, before 
the boundary follows a staggered line. A small parcel of amenity space to the 
west of no.27 was therefore retained, and the extension on the side facing 29 
features two side-facing windows; both of which are obscure glazed. They are 
thought to serve a kitchen or WC facilities within the pub. Whilst the 
extension, at both ground and first floor level would reduce the light to this 
amenity space, it is noted that owing to the 1930s two-storey outrigger at the 
application site, coupled with the deep rear extension at no.27, this amenity 
space has historically been subject to reduced light. Moreover, it has been 
noted in the section above that the height of the extension at ground floor 
level would be no greater than that of the existing conservatory. As such, 
whilst there would be a change in relationship to no.27, particularly 
concerning the area of amenity space to the west of this site, this change is 
not considered harmful so as to warrant a refusal recommendation. Owing to 
the windows on the side-flank of the extension being obscure-glazed, it is 
also not considered that the proposal would result in the loss of a primary 
outlook.  

 
6.12 It should also be noted that the public house is not a residential dwelling and 

its amenities are not protected by policy. 
 

6.13 No.31 to the western side comprises a single residential dwelling and 
arguably the only residential property that could be affected by the proposal. 
The rear wall of this dwelling projects approximately 2.35m deeper to the rear 
than no.29. The conservatory addition at present projects 3.5m beyond this 
rear wall. The extension would project 5.8m beyond. Importantly the 
extension is now set-away from the boundary between the two properties by 
2.8m, meaning the impacts of its additional depth are far reduced. The 
Council’s Householder Extensions and Alterations SPG recommends that in 
this instance, the 45-degree line should be used to measure any harm to the 
rear windows of any habitable rooms of the neighbour, in this case no.31. The 
relevant 45-degree line would intersect the mid-point of the easternmost 
ground floor double-casement window of this neighbour, therefore failing the 
test in plan form but the relevant test must fail both plan form and elevation 
form with the proposal in this case passing the test in elevation form. 
Notwithstanding that, it is noted this habitable room in question is served by 
two double-casement windows, the midpoint of both being situated roughly 
2m up from ground level. The westernmost double-casement window was not 

114

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

found to be intersected by the line. As such, whilst there would be some loss 
of light to this room, namely to the eastern window, it would not be significant 
and severe enough to warrant refusal on these grounds.  
 

6.14 The ground floor addition would feature side-facing fenestration, in the form of 
wrap-around bi-fold doors. These doors would not have a considerable 
overlooking impact, as they would be angled away from the windows to the 
rear elevation of 31 and would be separated from 31 by existing tall boundary 
treatment.  
 

6.15 The first-floor extension would be extended deeper than existing, extending 
around 3.8 metres from the rear elevation of 31 West Street. This depth, 
when considering the 2.8 metres separation to the shared boundary would 
not be harmful to to this neighbour by way of loss of light or appearing 
overbearing. The neighbour does have a side-facing first window facing this 
first floor extension but that appears to be permanently closed by way of a 
blind, as apparent on site and in this neighbour’s representation. The first 
floor extension would not feature any side-facing fenestration. There is not 
therefore considered to be any overlooking in either direction. 
 

6.16 Taking sections 6.8-6.14 into consideration, the proposal is considered to 
accord with policy DES1, and the requirements of the householder extensions 
and alterations SPG with regard to neighbour amenity,  

 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 
6.17 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a fixed charge which the Council 

will be collecting from some new developments from 1 April 2016. It will raise 
money to help pay for a wide range of infrastructure including schools, road, 
public transport and community facilities which are needed to support new 
development. This development would not be CIL liable. 
 
Other Matters 

 
6.18 Concern has been raised with regard to harm to the surrounding countryside 

and Green Belt. The site is located within the urban area, where there is a 
presumption in favour of sustainable residential development. It is also not 
considered that the scheme would be visible from the surrounding areas of 
countryside and Green Belt.  
 

6.19 Concern with regards to lack of parking has also been raised. Whilst the 
proposal would increase the size of the dwelling on the site, the number of 
bedrooms would remain the same. The dwelling would also not be subdivided 
to form further units. As such, it is not considered that it would increase 
pressure on the existing parking provision, nor it is necessary to assess the 
scheme with regard to policy TAP1 of the Council’s Development 
Management Plan.  
 

6.20 Objection has also been raised with regard to the noise and disturbance 
experienced during construction. This would be a temporary inconvenience. 

115

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

Statutory noise legislation, and legislation regarding working hours are in 
place to deal with the inconvenience, outside of the planning process.  

 
 
CONDITIONS - Application A: 21/00373/HHOLD 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans:  
 
Plan Type     Reference     Version Date 
Location Plan    UNNUMBERED 26/02/2021 
Floor Plan      UNNUMBERED   29/04/2021  
Floor Plan      UNNUMBERED   29/04/2021  
Floor Plan      UNNUMBERED   29/04/2021  
Floor Plan      UNNUMBERED   29/04/2021  
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Block Plan    UNNUMBERED   29/04/2021 
  
Reason: To define the permission and ensure the development is carried out 
in accord with the approved plans and in accordance with National Planning 
Practice Guidance. 
 

3. Notwithstanding the drawings, the proposed external finishing materials and 
details shall be carried out using the external facing materials and details 
specified below and there shall be no variation without the prior approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority; 
a) The rooflight shall be a black painted metal conservation rooflight with a 
single vertical glazing bar. Standard metal wrapped timber conservation 
rooflights would be unacceptable.  
b) The coping to the single storey extension shall be a dark grey aluminium 
coping, unless otherwise agreed and submitted and approved in writing by 
the LPA. 
c) The single storey element shall be of handmade sandfaced dark red brick 
in Flemish bond with brushed recessed point. The brick shall match the 
boundary wall and a photographic sample and name of brick and 
manufacturer shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA before 
any works above ground floor slab level. Sufficient time should be allowed for 
the order time of bricks in the building process. 

116

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

d) The roof and tile hanging shall be of handmade sandfaced tile to match 
existing. The tile shall match the existing  tile hanging and roof tiles, the tile 
hanging being a lighter coloured tile and before any works above ground floor 
slab level  a photographic sample and name of brick and manufacturer shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. Sufficient time should be 
allowed for the order time of tiles in the building process. The gable shall 
have straight lines of tiles with no Winchester cut at the interface of the plane 
of the roof and no bargeboard. The tile hanging shall have a kick to its base 
with a projecting brick stringcourse to match existing. The ground floor 
element shall be of painted render below the tile hanging. 
e) The first-floor casement windows shall be of white painted timber, with 
casements in each opening and external glazing bars of traditional profile. 
Detailed drawings of the windows shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the LPA before any works above ground floor slab level.  
f) The unauthorised fence to the east boundary shall be removed before any 
works above ground floor slab level. Its replacement shall match that of the 
previous fence form in terms of design, materials and dimensions. 
g) Notwithstanding the drawings the single storey extension shall be no 
higher than the underside of the existing brick stringcourse of the tile hung 
element. 
h) The west side boundary wall shall be protected during building works and if 
in ownership of 29 West Street shall be made good before the completion of 
works. 
i) The rainwater goods shall be of black painted cast metal with no gutter 
fascia. 
 
Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the details 
of the proposal and to safeguard the visual amenities of the locality, wider 
Conservation Area, and Grade II Listed Building with regard to Reigate and 
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 policies DES1 and NHE9  

 
 

4. There shall be no development above ground floor slab level until a scheme 
for the landscaping and replacement tree planting of the area between the 
extension and the Priory Cricket Ground to the south including the retention 
of existing landscape features has been submitted and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. Landscaping schemes shall include details of 
hard landscaping, planting plans, written specifications (including cultivation 
and other operations associated with tree, shrub, and hedge or grass 
establishment), schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities and an implementation programme. All hard and soft 
landscaping work shall be completed in full accordance with the 
approved scheme, prior to occupation or use of the approved development or 
in accordance with a programme agreed in writing with the local planning 
authority 
Any new tree planting shall be positioned in accordance with guidelines and 
advice contained in the current British Standard 5837. Trees in relation to 
construction. Any trees shrubs or plants planted in accordance with this 
condition which are removed, die or become damaged or become diseased 

117

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

within five years of planting shall be replaced within the next planting season 
by trees, and shrubs of the same size and species. 
 
Reason: To ensure good arboricultural and landscape practice in the 
interests of the maintenance of the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area and to comply with policies NHE3, NHE5 and DES1 and 
NHE9 of the Reigate and Banstead Borough Development Management Plan 
(September) 2019” 

 
 
CONDITIONS - Application B: 21/00374/LBC 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 18(1)(a) of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by Section 52 (4) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2005. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans:  
 
Plan Type     Reference     Version Date 
Location Plan    UNNUMBERED 26/02/2021 
Floor Plan      UNNUMBERED   29/04/2021  
Floor Plan      UNNUMBERED   29/04/2021  
Floor Plan      UNNUMBERED   29/04/2021  
Floor Plan      UNNUMBERED   29/04/2021  
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Elevation Plan UNNUMBERED     29/04/2021 
Block Plan    UNNUMBERED   29/04/2021 
  
Reason: To define the permission and ensure the development is carried out 
in accord with the approved plans and in accordance with National Planning 
Practice Guidance. 
 

3. Notwithstanding the drawings, the proposed external finishing materials and 
details shall be carried out using the external facing materials and details 
specified below and there shall be no variation without the prior approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority; 
a) The rooflight shall be a black painted metal conservation rooflight with a 
single vertical glazing bar. Standard metal wrapped timber conservation 
rooflights would be unacceptable.  
b) The coping to the single storey extension shall be a dark grey aluminium 
coping. unless otherwise agreed and submitted and approved in writing by 
the LPA. 

118

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

c) The single storey element shall be of handmade sandfaced dark red brick 
in Flemish bond with brushed recessed point. The brick shall match the 
boundary wall and a photographic sample and name of brick and 
manufacturer shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA before 
works commence. Sufficient time should be allowed for the order time of 
bricks in the building process. 
d) The roof and tile hanging shall be of handmade sandfaced tile to match 
existing. The tile shall match the existing tile hanging and roof tiles, the tile 
hanging being a lighter coloured tile and before works commence a 
photographic sample and name of brick and manufacturer shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the LPA. Sufficient time should be allowed for 
the order time of tiles in the building process. The gable shall have straight 
lines of tiles with no Winchester cut at the interface of the plane of the roof 
and no bargeboard. The tile hanging shall have a kick to its base with a 
projecting brick stringcourse to match existing. The ground floor element shall 
be of painted render below the tile hanging. 
e) The first-floor casement windows shall be of white painted timber, with 
casements in each opening and external glazing bars of traditional profile. 
Detailed drawings of the windows shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the LPA before works commence. 
f) The unauthorised fence to the east boundary shall be removed before 
commencement of works. Its replacement shall match that of the previous 
fence form in terms of design, materials and dimensions. 
g) Notwithstanding the drawings the single storey extension shall be no 
higher than the underside of the existing brick stringcourse of the tile hung 
element. 
h) The west side boundary wall shall be protected during building works and if 
in ownership of 29 West Street shall be made good before the completion of 
works.  
i) The rainwater goods shall be of black painted cast metal with no gutter 
fascia. 
 
Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority are satisfied with the details 
of the proposal and to safeguard the visual amenities of the locality, wider 
Conservation Area, and Grade II Listed Building with regard to Reigate and 
Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 policies DES1 and NHE9. 

 
4. No development shall commence until a scheme for the landscaping and 

replacement tree planting of the area between the extension and the Priory 
Cricket Ground to the south including the retention of existing landscape 
features has been submitted and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. Landscaping schemes shall include details of hard landscaping, 
planting plans, written specifications (including cultivation and other 
operations associated with tree, shrub, and hedge or grass establishment), 
schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities and an implementation programme. All hard and soft 
landscaping work shall be completed in full accordance with the 
approved scheme, prior to occupation or use of the approved development or 
in accordance with a programme agreed in writing with the local planning 
authority 

119

Agenda Item 8



Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

Any new tree planting shall be positioned in accordance with guidelines and 
advice contained in the current British Standard 5837. Trees in relation to 
construction. Any trees shrubs or plants planted in accordance with this 
condition which are removed, die or become damaged or become diseased 
within five years of planting shall be replaced within the next planting season 
by trees, and shrubs of the same size and species. 
 
Reason: To ensure good arboricultural and landscape practice in the 
interests of the maintenance of the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area and to comply with policies NHE3, NHE5 and DES1 and 
NHE9 of the Reigate and Banstead Borough Development Management Plan 
(September) 2019” 

 
 
INFORMATIVES - Application A: 21/00373/HHOLD 
 
 
1. Your attention is drawn to the safety benefits of installing sprinkler systems as 

an integral part of new development.  Further information is available at 
www.firesprinklers.org.uk. 

 
2. The applicant is encouraged to provide renewable technology within the 

development hereby permitted in order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 
Further information can be found on the Council website at : Climate Change 
Information. 

 
3. Should any development be proposed on or near the boundary then a party 

wall notice may be required under the Party Wall Act etc 1996. 
 
4. You are advised that the Council will expect the following measures to be 

taken during any building operations to control noise, pollution and parking: 
(a) Work that is audible beyond the site boundary should only be carried out 

between 08:00hrs to 18:00hrs Monday to Friday, 08:00hrs to 13:00hrs 
Saturday and not at all on Sundays or any Public and/or Bank Holidays; 

(b) The quietest available items of plant and machinery should be used on 
site.  Where permanently sited equipment such as generators are 
necessary, they should be enclosed to reduce noise levels; 

(c) Deliveries should only be received within the hours detailed in (a) above; 
(d) Adequate steps should be taken to prevent dust-causing nuisance 

beyond the site boundary.  Such uses include the use of hoses to damp 
down stockpiles of materials, which are likely to generate airborne dust, 
to damp down during stone/slab cutting; and the use of bowsers and 
wheel washes; 

(e) There should be no burning on site; 
(f) Only minimal security lighting should be used outside the hours stated 

above; and 
(g) Building materials and machinery should not be stored on the highway 

and contractors’ vehicles should be parked with care so as not to cause 
an obstruction or block visibility on the highway. 

120

Agenda Item 8

http://www.firesprinklers.org.uk/
https://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20065/environmental_sustainability_and_climate_change/119/energy_efficiency_and_renewable_energy_in_development
https://www.reigate-banstead.gov.uk/info/20065/environmental_sustainability_and_climate_change/119/energy_efficiency_and_renewable_energy_in_development


Planning Committee  Agenda Item: 8 
7th July 2021                                                                     21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC  
 

Further details of these noise and pollution measures can be obtained 
from the Council’s Environmental Health Services Unit.  
In order to meet these requirements and to promote good neighbourliness, the 
Council recommends that this site is registered with the Considerate 
Constructors Scheme - www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration. 

 
 
Applications A & B 

 
REASON FOR PERMISSION 
 
The development hereby permitted has been assessed against development plan 
policies CS1, CS4, CS10, CS11, DES1,NHE9 and material considerations, including 
third party representations.  It has been concluded that the development is in 
accordance with the development plan and there are no material considerations that 
justify refusal in the public interest. 
 
Proactive and Positive Statements  
 
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including 
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and 
subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development where possible, as set out within 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 

121

Agenda Item 8

http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration


9

6

1

8

2

4

Court
Priory

33

1
7

1
5

10

18

28

21

20

30

24

14

26

19

13

32

41

43

36

12

22

29

Priory Cricket Ground

11

LB

1
3

c

24a

18a

Nutley

1
3

b

PH

11c

Market House

N
U

T
L

E
Y

 L
A

N
E

UPPER WEST STREET

PA
R

K
 L

A
N

E

1 
to

 8

83.5m

78.3m

80.5m

1 to 20

Posts

W
o

rk
s

16 to 18

El Sub Sta

Pavilion

Lincoln House

15

1

9

17

15

19

PH

28

20

6

20

24

17

10

24

10

2
8

6

8

Hall

SLIPSHO
E STREET

(site of)

40

Som
ers

UPPER WEST STREET

19

Court

14

22

Scale

21/00373/HHOLD & 21/00374/LBC - 29 West Street, Reigate

Crown Copyright Reserved.  Reigate and Banstead Borough Council.
Licence No - 100019405-2018

Legend

1:1,250

122

Agenda Item 8



Plans and elevations

PAGE 1 Existing ground floor plan

PAGE 2  Proposed ground floor plan (with second storey extension for reference)

PAGE 3  Existing second floor plan

PAGE 4  Proposed second floor plan (with ground floor extension for reference)

PAGE 5  Existing rear elevations

PAGE 6  Proposed rear elevations

PAGE 7  Existing and proposed side (East) elevations

PAGE 8  Existing and proposed side (West) elevations

PAGE 9 Side elevations showing eaves (proposed)

PAGE 10 Surveyed rear elevations showing proposed ground floor extension height 

Cat and Simon Hoad
29 West Street, RH2 9BL

123

A
genda Item

 8



GROUND FLOOR / SITE PLAN EXISTING PAGE 1Cat and Simon Hoad
29 West Street, RH2 9BL

Metres 1:100 @A4
Metres 1:100 @A4

124

A
genda Item

 8



PAGE 2

Dark framed double glazed 
bifold doors to wrap around 
corner of the extension

30cm down

Proposal to replace existing 
conservatory with deeper, part two 
storey, solid extension.  Single storey 
area to have flat sedum covered roof.  
External cladding to be reclaimed / 
handmade brick (laid in Flemish bond) 
to match the Georgian wall and hand 
made hung tile.  

Proposal pays particular attention to 
gap between the extension and the 
neighbouring property to the West 
(no.31) and leaves unobstructed the 
original rear aspect of the circa C.16th
part of the building. 

Cat and Simon Hoad
29 West Street, RH2 9BL

GROUND FLOOR / SITE PLAN PROPOSED

Metres 1:100 @A4
Metres 1:100 @A4

Two storey extension 
footprint for information

Changes proposed

125

A
genda Item

 8



PAGE 3Cat and Simon Hoad
29 West Street, RH2 9BL

FIRST FLOOR PLAN EXISTING

Metres 1:100 @A4
Metres 1:100 @A4

126

A
genda Item

 8



PAGE 4

Dark framed double 
glazed window with 
glazing bars

FAMILY 
BATHROOM

External dimensions (excluding 
hung tile cladding) 4m (depth) 
x 4.2m (width)

Depth extends 3m from 
existing extension (measured 
from chimney breast)

One conservation 
style rooflight

Cat and Simon Hoad
29 West Street, RH2 9BL

FIRST FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED

Proposal to add second storey 
extension to the rear of the 
property.  Traditional sloping 
roof line and hung tile cladding 
in keeping with that of the 
existing Victorian extension.  

Metres 1:100 @A4
Metres 1:100 @A4

Ground floor extension 
footprint for information

Changes proposed

127

A
genda Item

 8



EXISTING

PAGE 5Cat and Simon Hoad
29 West Street, RH2 9BL

Metres 1:100 @A4

128

A
genda Item

 8



PAGE 6Cat and Simon Hoad
29 West Street, RH2 9BL

PROPOSED

Dark framed double 
glazed window with 
glazing bars

Remove Victorian 
chimney stack from rear 
of existing extension

Sedum flat roof 
ground floor 
extension clad in 
Flemish bond laid 
brick 

Dark framed double 
glazed bifold doors

Cross gable end roof 
and façade in plain 
clay tile

Metres 1:100 @A4

129

A
genda Item

 8



PAGE 7Cat and Simon Hoad
29 West Street, RH2 9BL

Existing elevation

Proposed elevation
Chimney stack to be removed

Second storey tile hung 
with tiled cross gable roof

Single storey flat 
sedum roof

Ground level at number 27 
(Blue Anchor Public House)

Blue Anchor PH (no.27) garden cabins

Blue Anchor PH (no.27) roof line

West StreetFootpath

EXISTING AND PROPOSED

Metres 1:100 @A4

130

A
genda Item

 8



PAGE 8Cat and Simon Hoad
29 West Street, RH2 9BL

Existing elevation

Chimney stack 
to be removed

West Street Footpath

SIDE (WEST) ELEVATION

Proposed elevation

Second storey tile hung 
with tiled cross gable roof

Single storey flat 
sedum roof

No. 31 roof line

Boundary brick wall

EXISTING AND PROPOSED

Metres 1:100 @A4

131

A
genda Item

 8



PAGE 9Cat and Simon Hoad
29 West Street, RH2 9BL

SIDE ELEVATIONS SHOWING EAVES PROPOSED

Single storey: 
brick cladding; 
flat sedum roof

Second storey 
hung tile cladding

Second storey tiled cross 
gable pitch roof

EAST

Single storey: 
brick cladding; 
flat sedum roof

Second storey 
hung tile cladding

Second storey tiled pitch 
roof extending in same 
form as existing roof

WEST

Metres 1:100 @A4

132

A
genda Item

 8



SURVEYED REAR ELEVATIONS SHOWING 
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION HEIGHT PAGE 10Cat and Simon Hoad

29 West Street, RH2 9BL

Existing conservatory eaves are to 300cm above floor level 
Total height of proposed ground floor extension is nominally 240cm above 
existing floor level 

18 cm nominal height of ‘extensive’ sedum roof structure
15 cm nominal height for insulation
17 cm nominal height for ceiling joists

220 cm nominal room height

(including) 30 cm step down from existing floor level

Ground floor extension width 
is in line with existing Victorian 
extension.  

In this way it avoids obscuring 
or obstructing the original 
form of the listed building.  

Metres 1:100 @A4

133

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

134


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 21/00205/OUT -  46- 48 Victoria Road, Horley
	5 - 21.00205.OUT - Collingwood and Batchellor
	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	Consultations:
	Representations:
	Response
	Issue
	1.0 Site and Character Appraisal
	2.0 Added Value
	3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
	4.0 Proposal and Design Approach
	5.0 Policy Context
	5.2      Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy
	CS1(Sustainable Development)
	CS5 (Valued People/Economic Development),
	CS7 (Town/Local Centres),
	CS10 (Sustainable Development),
	CS11 (Sustainable Construction),
	CS14 (Housing Needs)
	CS15 (Affordable Housing)
	5.3      Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019
	5.4 Other Material Considerations

	6.0 Assessment
	RECOMMENDATION

	OS
	Combined
	Elevation
	Sheets and Views
	19113_C&B-P011_Sun Path


	Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	19113_C&B-P09 (A)_Elevation 2 (A)


	Street
	Sheets and Views
	19113_C&B-P10_Street Scene 3



	6 21/00413/F - 29 Woodlands Road, Redhill
	6 - 21.00413.F  29 Woodlands Road
	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION(S)
	Consultations:
	Representations:
	1.0 Site and Character Appraisal
	2.0 Added Value
	3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
	4.0 Proposal and Design Approach
	5.0 Policy Context
	5.2       Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy
	CS1(Sustainable Development)
	CS10 (Sustainable Development),
	5.3       Reigate & Banstead Development Management Plan 2019
	5.4 Other Material Considerations

	6.0 Assessment
	CONDITIONS
	INFORMATIVES
	REASON FOR PERMISSION

	OS
	Site
	Sheets and Views
	PL 03 SITE PLAN


	Block
	Sheets and Views
	PL 02 BLOCK PLAN


	Elevations 1
	Sheets and Views
	PL 06 PLOT 2 ELEVS


	Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	PL 05 PLOT 1 ELEVS


	Sections
	Sheets and Views
	PL 08 SITE SECTION


	CGI
	Sheets and Views
	PL 07 PERSPECTIVE



	7 21/00501/F - Middleton House, 43-49 High Street, Horley
	7 - 21.00501.F - Middleton House
	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	Consultations:
	Representations:
	1.0 Site and Character Appraisal
	2.0 Added Value
	3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
	4.0 Proposal and Design Approach
	5.0 Policy Context
	5.2      Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy (CS)
	CS1(Sustainable Development)
	CS5 (Valued People/Economic Development),
	CS7 (Town/Local Centres),
	CS10 (Sustainable Development),
	CS11 (Sustainable Construction),
	CS14 (Housing Needs)
	CS17 (Travel Options and accessibility)
	5.3      Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019 (DMP)
	5.4 Other Material Considerations

	6.0 Assessment
	CONDITIONS
	INFORMATIVES
	REASON FOR PERMISSION

	OS
	Site 1
	Sheets and Views
	14B-Prop Site Plan


	Site 2
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Site 3
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Site 4
	Sheets and Views
	27- Prop Bin Storage Layout


	Site
	Sheets and Views
	25A- Prop Lightwell Elevations


	Street
	Sheets and Views
	24A- Prop Street Scene Elevations


	Elevation 1
	Sheets and Views
	J003825-DD-23A-Prop Flank Elevation


	Elevation 2
	Sheets and Views
	22B-Prop Flank Elevation


	Elevation 3
	Sheets and Views
	21B-Prop Rear Elevation


	Elevation
	Sheets and Views
	20B-Prop Front Elevation


	Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	25A- Prop Lightwell Elevations



	8 a) 21/00373/HHOLD and b) 21/00374/LBC - 29 West Street, Reigate
	21.00373.HHOLD & 21.00374.LBC - 29 West Street, Reigate
	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	Consultations:
	Response
	Issue
	1.0 Site and Character Appraisal
	2.0 Added Value
	3.0 Relevant Planning and Enforcement History
	4.0 Proposal and Design Approach
	5.0 Policy Context
	5.2      Reigate and Banstead Core Strategy
	CS1(Sustainable Development)
	CS10 (Sustainable Development),
	CS11 (Sustainable Construction),
	5.3      Reigate and Banstead Development Management Plan 2019
	5.4 Other Material Considerations

	6.0 Assessment
	CONDITIONS - Application A: 21/00373/HHOLD
	INFORMATIVES - Application A: 21/00373/HHOLD
	REASON FOR PERMISSION
	The development hereby permitted has been assessed against development plan policies CS1, CS4, CS10, CS11, DES1,NHE9 and material considerations, including third party representations.  It has been concluded that the development is in accordance with ...


	OS
	2506 Plans and elevations


